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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile
and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
arisk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of

this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China
Natural Investment Company Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make

any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements”
page of the GEM website at http://www.hkgem.com for at least seven days
[from the date of its publication and is available for reference on the website
of the Company at http://www.chinanatural.com.hk.
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Corporate Information

NRIBER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Mr. Li Wai Hung (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Liang (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 28 December 2011)
Mr. Bai Jian
(appointed on 28 December 2011)
Mr. U Man long
(resigned with effect from 22 November 2011)
Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary
(resigned with effect from 21 June 2012)
Ms. Wu Mei Chu
(retired with effect from 10 November 2011)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Leung Chi Kin
Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy
(appointed on 10 November 2011)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth
(appointed on 28 December 2011)
Mr. Hui Sin Kwong
(retired with effect from 10 November 2011)
Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman
(resigned with effect from 29 March 2012)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman)
Mr. Leung Chi Kin

Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy (Chairman)

Mr. Leung Chi Kin

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy (Chairman)

Mr. Leung Chi Kin

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Luk Chi Shing

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Li Wai Hung
Mr. Luk Chi Shing

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
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Corporate Information

NRIER

REGISTERED OFFICE
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Cayman Islands
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BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
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168-200 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants
31/F, Gloucester Tower

The Landmark

11 Pedder Street

Central

Hong Kong
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Dah Sing Bank Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited
Wing Hang Bank Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Maples Corporate Services Limited

PO Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), I am pleased to
present the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2012 (the "Year").

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Group’s major business includes the manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products, provision of advertising and public relations
services, research and development and property investment. The
overall business operations of the Group had been on a path of steady
growth during the Year.

Despite the fluctuating global economy, the Group reached the target
performances in its major business areas and investment properties
in the prime locations that continuously generate reasonable returns
to its shareholders.

Advertising and Public Relations Business

Hong Kong continues to perform its dynamic role as a regional leader
in the financial sector and therefore the advertising and public relations
industry is growing concurrently. And with the solid reputation and
long presence in Hong Kong's public relations industry, PR ASIA
Consultants Limited (“PR ASIA") continues to provide the Group with
a steady source of income since 2011.

PR ASIA provides strategic consulting services in corporate
issue/crisis
management, media training and event management to a wide range
of listed companies both in Hong Kong and China. For the Year,
the Group's provisions of advertising and public relations services
achieved a revenue of approximately HK$26,030,000, accounting for
approximately 45.5% of the Group's total revenue.

communications, media relations, investor relations,

Assets Investment

For the Year, the Group recorded rental income generated by the retail
and office properties of approximately HK$5,993,000, representing an
increase of approximately 68.0% compared with the previous financial
year. The Group continues to benefit from Hong Kong's vibrant property
market as our investment portfolio is expected to bring valuation gains
for the Group. The Group enjoyed valuation gains from the investment
properties of approximately HK$21, 866,000 for the Year.

Due to the economic uncertainties over the global market that resulted
from the European debt crisis, Hong Kong stocks showed volatility
during the Year. The Group recorded a loss arising on change in fair
value of held-for-trading investments of approximately HK$ 13,361,000
for the Year. With that being said, the Group remains to hold a strong
cash position and does not have any bank or other borrowings.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

All investment activities including investments in listed and unlisted
securities as well as owned properties in prime allocations are carried
out under prudent risk management and the Group will cautiously
monitor its investment portfolio’s performance from time to time.

Manufacturing and Sale of Pharmaceutical Products Business
During the Year, the Group's pharmaceutical business recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$25,008,000 in the provision of the
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products, accounting
for approximately 43.7% of the Group’s total revenue. The public’s
demand for medicine will continue to increase while a sustainable
expansion in the pharmaceutical market is expected. The demand is
triggered by the rapidly aging population and rising the standard of
living in Hong Kong. Nevertheless, the Group will continue to review
the development strategy in this business with respect to the new
licensing requirement for the operation of a Good Manufacturing
Practice certified factory in Hong Kong.

New Business Segment

In order to spread and lower the Group's investment risk and broaden
its income base, on 7 May 2012, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement to acquire a group of companies, which are principally
engaged in the exploration, exploitation and processing and trading
of fluorites, at a total consideration of HK$148,000,000 (subject to
adjustment). The Group has taken into consideration of the prospect
of fluorite particles and believes that this acquisition would provide
an opportunity for the Group to explore a new stream of business
in the mining and trading of fluorites and other natural resources in
the future.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, in the view of the uncertainty over the global
economic environment, the Group will maintain its diversified
investment strategy in order to spread and lower the business risks,
broaden the income source and maximise the shareholders’ values,
so as to secure the sustainable and stable growth across the Group’s
businesses.

The year 2012 is expected to be a year of complex external
macroeconomic conditions. However, the Group believes that
opportunities coexist with challenges. With the intensive attention paid
to the market changes, the Group will continue to modify its existing
business strategies to cope with the changing business environment
and make every effort to seek potential investment projects in line
with the Group's future development so as to optimise its mix of
investments in order to expand the value base for the shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

On behalf of the Board, | wish to express my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other business
associates for their long-term support; and also to every director, the
management team and all staff for their effort paid during the Year.

Li Wai Hung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 14 September 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B R wm Mo AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$57,245,000, representing an increase of 36.6% compared with
the previous year.

Gross profit for the Year was approximately HK$ 25,160,000, representing
an increase of 31.5% compared with the previous year.

Basic loss per share for the Year was HK1.3 cents (2011: HKO.3 cents).

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$16,181,000 (2011: HK$1,907,000). Such loss was
mainly due to losses arising on (i) change in fair value of held-fortrading
investments; and (i) increases in administrative and operating expenses
of the Group.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Group's revenue represents revenue arising on three main
segments of business, namely (i) provision of diagnostic testing
and healthcare services, manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical
products; (i) provision of advertising and public relations services;
and (i) property investment.

During the Year, revenue from provision of diagnostic testing and
healthcare services, manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical
products and provision of advertising and public relations services
were approximately HK$25,223,000 and HK$26,030,000 respectively.

For the Year, the property and asset investments markets enjoyed
strong growth. The Group recorded rental income generated by its
investment properties of approximately HK$5,993,000 and enjoyed
valuation gains from the investment properties of approximately
HKS$21,866,000.

Due to the economic uncertainties over the global market during the

Year, the Group recorded a loss from change in fair value of held-for-
trade investments of approximately HK$13,361,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B R am Mo AT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2012, the Group held cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$32,847,000 (2011: HKS$68,900,000). Net
current assets amounted to approximately HK$103,314,000 (2011:
HK$109,698,000).

As at 30 June 2012, current ratio (defined as total current assets divided
by total current liabilities) was approximately 12. 54 times (2011: 8.37
times). Gearing ratio (expressed as the ratio of total liabilities over total
assets) was approximately 0.03 (2011: 0.05).

The Group did not have any bank or other borrowings as at 30 June
2012 (2011: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 30 June 2012, total equity attributable to owners of the Company

was approximately HK$313,138,000 (2011: HK$291,965,000).

Pursuant to an underwriting agreement entered into between the
Company and Kingston Securities Limited on 28 February 2012, the
Company has raised approximately HK$38,800,000 before expenses
by way of an open offer of 554,167,446 offer shares of the Company
(the "Offer Share(s)") at a price of HK$0.07 per Offer Share on the basis
of one Offer Share for every two existing shares of the Company held
on the record date, being 21 March 2012 (the “Open Offer”). The Open
Offer was completed in April 2012.

On 9 May 2012, the Company entered into a share placing agreement
with Kingston Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”), pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to place through the
Placing Agent on a best effort basis, a maximum of 1,000,000,000
placing shares (the “Placing Share(s)") to not less than six independent
placees at the placing price of HK$0.05 per Placing Share (“Share
Placing”). The net proceeds from the Share Placing will, if fully placed,
be approximately HK$48,200,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B R wm Mo AT

On 9 May 2012, the Company also entered into a convertible notes
placing agreement with the Placing Agent, pursuant to which the
Placing Agent has conditionally agreed to place the convertible notes
("Convertible Notes”) in the maximum aggregate principal amount
of HK$100,000,000 to independent placee(s) on a best effort basis
(“CN Placing”). The Convertible Notes will carry a right to convert
into conversion shares of the Company (the “Conversion Share(s)") at
the conversion price of, subject to adjustment, HK$0.05 ("Conversion
Price”) per Conversion Share. Upon full conversion of the Convertible
Notes at the Conversion Price, a total of 2,000,000,000 Conversion
Shares will be issued. The net proceeds from the CN Placing will, if
fully placed, be approximately HK$96,500,000.

The ordinary resolutions for the Share Placing and the CN Placing
were duly passed by the Company’s shareholders at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 30 July 2012. The Share Placing and the CN
Placing are subject to, among others, the granting of the listing of and
permission to deal in the Placing Shares and the Conversion Shares,
by the Stock Exchange.

Details of both the Share Placing and the CN Placing were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2012.

EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the trading transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. It is the Group's policy for its
operating entities to operate in their corresponding local currencies to
minimise currency risks. The Group had an insignificant exchange risk
exposure since the principal businesses were conducted and recorded
in Hong Kong dollars during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND

DISPOSAL

(i) A sale and purchase agreement dated 23 April 2012 was
entered into between an independent third party and Fairy
Empire Investment Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in relation to the sale and purchase of 1 ordinary
share of US$1.00 each in the issued share capital of Fairy Global
Investment Limited (“Fairy Global”) and all indebtedness,
obligations and liabilities due, owing or incurred by Fairy
Global to Fairy Empire Investment Limited as at the date of
completion, at an aggregate consideration of HK$22,500,000.
Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 23 April 2012. The completion took
place on 24 April 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

IR R am Mo AT

(i) On 7 May 2012, the Group, as the purchaser, entered into
an acquisition agreement with independent third parties,
as the vendors, to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Sino-Mongolia Fluorspar Mining Co. Ltd, which is principally
engaged in the exploration, exploitation, processing and
trading of fluorites, at a total consideration of HK$ 148,000,000
(subject to adjustments) (the “"Acquisition”). The Acquisition
constituted a major transaction for the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules and is subject to, among others, reporting,
announcement and shareholders'approval in an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company. Details of the Acquisition
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
15 May 2012. As at the date of this report, the Acquisition has
not been completed.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
As at 30 June 2012, the Group had no significant capital
commitment.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 30 June 2012, none of the assets of the Group were pledged as
security for any banking facilities.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
As at 30 June 2012, there were 109 staff members (2011:129) employed
by the Group.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry
practices and their respective educational background, experience and
performance. On top of the regular remuneration and discretionary
bonus, share options may be granted to selected employees
by reference to the Group's performance as well as individual’s
performance. In addition, each employee enjoys mandatory provident
fund, medical allowance and other fringe benefits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2012, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EZNEREEEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Hung, aged 50, joined the Company as an executive
Director on 30 September 2009 and was appointed as the chairman
of the Company on 22 November 2011. Mr. Li is also a director of
certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 22
years of experience in sales related works and held senior positions
in various companies.

Mr. Chen Liang, aged 43, joined the Company as an executive Director
and chief executive officer on 28 December 2011. Mr. Chen holds a
Doctoral Degree in Coal, Oil and Gas Geology and Exploration from
China University of Petroleum (Beijing). Mr. Chen had been a vice
president of CITIC Resources Holdings Limited (stock code: 1205), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, during the
period from September 2005 to November 2006 and a vice president
of CITIC Seram Energy Limited during the period from December 2006
to February 2010. During the period from April 2010 to July 2011, Mr.
Chen had been an executive director of Goodtop Tin International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Vitar International Holdings
Limited, stock code: 195), also a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen has accumulated over 15 years of
working experience in petroleum exploration and development.

Mr. Bai Jian, aged 42, joined the Company as an executive Director
on 28 December 2011. Mr. Bai holds a Doctoral Degree in Cartography
and Geographic Information Engineering from China University of
Geosciences (Beijing). Mr. Bai is also a qualified senior geologist in
China. Since graduation from Rock and Mineral and Geochemical
Profession in Geology Department of Peking University and obtaining
the Bachelor Degree of Science in 1992, Mr. Bai has worked for a
number of state-owned and large-scale multinational exploration
enterprises, including BHP Billiton in Australia, and has supervised or
participated in various geological researches and mineral exploration
projects in these companies. Mr. Bai has accumulated over 19 years of
working experience in mineral resources exploration, geological data
collection, processing, analysis and study. Mr. Bai has also published a
number of articles in geology study in various core journals in China
and other famous overseas scientific journals in the related field.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EZNEREEEREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Chi Kin, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 27 November 2009. He is a member of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Company. He is devoted to community welfare work and has
been the committee member or chairman of various social groups.
Mr. Leung had been an appointed member of the Shatin District
Council for 17 years. Mr Leung was also awarded a Medal of Honour by
Hong Kong Government. He had been an independent non-executive
director of Apollo Solar Energy Technology Holdings Limited (formerly
known as RBI Holdings Limited) (stock code: 566), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, during the period from 1
May 2008 to 25 November 2009.

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 December 2011. He is
a member of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chi holds a Bachelor
of Accountancy Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in
the United Kingdom. Mr. Chi is an executive director of Hua Yi Copper
Holdings Limited (stock code: 559), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange; China Grand Forestry Green Resources
Group Limited (stock code: 910), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange; M Dream Inworld Limited (stock code: 8100),
a company listed on GEM; and Morning Star Resources Limited (stock
code: 542), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent non-executive director of ZMAY Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8085), and Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(stock code: 8148), both companies listed on GEM; Sam Woo Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2322) and Perfect Shape (PRC) Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1830), being companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
Interchina Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 202) from 4 October
2011 to 15 August 2012. Mr. Chi has accumulated over 20 years of
working experience in accounting and financial control.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EZNEREEEREE

Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 10 November 2011. He is a member of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Tam has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
for over 15 years. He is currently a partner of Messrs. Ho & Tam, a firm
of solicitors in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws from
the University of London; Bachelor Degree of PRC Laws from Tsing
Hua University; and a Master Degree of Laws from The University of
Hong Kong. He is an independent non-executive director of China
Fortune Financial Group Limited (formerly known as “China Fortune
Group Limited”) (stock code: 290), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and an independent non-executive director
of M Dream Inworld Limited (stock code: 8100), and China AU Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8176), both companies listed on GEM.
Mr. Tam is also a non-executive director of Larry Jewelry International
Company Limited (formerly known as Eternite International Company
Limited) (stock code: 8351), a company listed on GEM and a non-
executive director of Milan Station Holdings Limited (stock code: 1150),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ling Koon Wah, aged 56, is the managing director of a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Ling has worked in the financial
media industry for over 30 years and has in-depth experience and
extensive network in the financial media industry. Mr. Ling is mainly
responsible for the management of the operation of the public
relations business.

Mr. Leung Pak Hou, Anson, aged 46, is the chief executive officer
of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Leung is mainly
responsible for the management of the operation of the manufacturing
and sale of generic western medicines. Mr. Leung possesses a Bachelor
Degree in Commerce from the University of Newcastle, Australia, as
well as a Master of Business Administration Degree from the University
of Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has over 10 years of experience
in the pharmaceutical industry.

Mr. Luk Chi Shing, aged 43, joined the Group in January 2012. He is
the financial controller and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Luk
holds a Bachelors Degree of Business Administration in Accountancy
from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Luk is an associate member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Luk
has extensive working experience in financial management, auditing
and pubilic listed companies for over 15 years.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERRE

The board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed in maintaining
a good corporate governance standard. The Board believes that a
good corporate governance standard will provide a framework for the
Group to formulate the business strategies and policies, and manage
the associated risks through effective internal control procedures. It
will also enhance the transparency of the Group and strengthen the
accountability to the shareholders and creditors of the Company.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Company endeavours in maintaining good standard of corporate
governance for the enhancement of shareholders'value. The Company
has applied the principles of and complied with the code provisions
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct
of the Company regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiry of all the Directors, and the
Directors have complied with the required standard of dealings and
the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has overall responsibility for the management of the
Company and the implementation of the investment policy of the
Company, which includes, inter alia, the adoption of long term
corporate strategies, assessment of investment projects, supervision
of the management of the Company to ensure that the Company’s
investments are conducted in accordance with the objectives of the
Company, and reviewing financial performance.

The Board currently has six Directors, among them, three are executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors.
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The Board held 24 meetings during the Year and the attendance of

each Director is set out below:

EEENAFEET TS SEEZHER
T

Number of Board

meetings attended

Name of Directors HEESEERRH

Executive Directors: HITES:

Mr. Li Wai Hung (Chairman) BEBILEFERE) 24/24

Mr. Chen Liang (Chief Executive Officer) BRZe ST A (7T B AR #) 13/15
(appointed on 28 December 2011) (R20114F 12 A28 HIEZ )

Mr. Bai Jian RS 13/15
(appointed on 28 December 2011) (R20114F 12 A28 HIEZ )

Ms. Wu Mei Chu [EES/ et 6/7
(retired with effect from 10 November 2011) (/FAZOZ 19611 10 H #ELR(T)

Mr. U Man long XExE 7/8
(resigned with effect from 22 November 2011) (/F\AZOZ 19F11 522 HEEF#T)

Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary JERREE e A 21/24
(resigned with effect from 21 June 2012) (R2012%F6 H21 HAEEE(T)

Independent Non-executive Directors: BIFEHTES :

Mr. Leung Chi Kin ;@ZEE&EE 23/24

Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy B LN S 15/17
(appointed on 10 November 2011) (R2011FE 11 A10HEZT)

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth TEBEEE 11/15
(appointed on 28 December 2011) (R20114F 12 A28 HIEZF)

Mr. Hui Sin Kwong FENEE 6/7
(retired with effect from 10 November 2011) (R20114E11 A 10HERIE)

Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman BRE KA 15/17

(resigned with effect from 29 March 2012)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 11
to 13 of this annual report.

Composition of the Board, including names of the independent non-
executive Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications to
shareholders of the Company.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business or
family relationship among members of the Board as at 30 June 2012.
All of them are free to exercise their individual judgment.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
and accounts of the Group. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the expense of
the Company. The Company will, upon request, provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist them to
discharge their duties to the Company. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover for the Directors.
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The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group’s business to the management of the
relevant segments and divisions. The management is responsible for
the implementation and adoption of the Company’s strategies and
policies. The delegated functions and tasks are periodically reviewed
by the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To improve the independence and divisions of functions, the roles of
the chairman and the chief executive officer ("CEQ") of the Company
have been segregated and have not been exercised by the same
individual during the Year.

On 22 November 2011, Mr. U Man long ceased to be the chairman
of the Company and Mr. Li Wai Hung became the chairman of the
Company. The chairman provides leadership for the Board and
ensures its effectiveness in all aspects. With the support of the senior
management, the chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a
timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at the Board
meetings.

On 28 December 2011, Mr. Li Wai Hung ceased to be the CEO of the
Company and Mr. Chen Liang was appointed as the CEO.The CEQisin
charge of the Company’s day-to day management and operations and
focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved
and delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has three
independent non-executive Directors, one of them has appropriate
professional or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. Based on such
confirmation, the Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a specific term of one year.
They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company at least once every three years in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES

In accordance with the CG Code, the Board established three board
committees, namely the remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
and the audit committee (“Audit Committee”) for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the board committees are posted on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company's website.

The board committees are provided with sufficient resource to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has been established with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on policies and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Tam B Ray, Billy, Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth and Mr. Leung Chi Kin.
Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
since his appointment on 29 March 2012

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year
and reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company, assessed the
performance of the executive Directors and senior management and
recommended specific remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management to the Board. The attendance of each member
is set out below:
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Members

Number of
meetings

attended
HESEXE

Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy (Chairman) BLERIEE(FE) —/—
(appointed on 29 March 2012) (R20124F3 29 A #Z(T)
Mr. Leung Chi Kin REREE 2/2
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth TEBEE —/--
(appointed on 29 March 2012) (R20124F3 529 A EZA(F)
Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman PRESC R A 2/2
(resigned with effect from 29 March 2012) (R20124F3 F29H #EEE(F)
Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary JERREE e A4 2/2
(resigned with effect from 29 March 2012) (R201243 H29 A #EEE(T)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZRE
The Company established the Nomination Committee on 29 March ~ ANAFRIR20126F3 298KV IR Z B - WERE

2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the relevant
CG Code to be effective on 1 April 2012. The Nomination Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Tam B Ray, Billy, Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth and Mr. Leung Chi Kin. Mr.
Tam B Ray, Billy is the chairman of the Nomination Committee since
his appointment on 29 March 2012

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
formulating nomination policy and making recommendations
to the Board on nomination and appointment of Directors and
Board succession, developing selection procedures for nomination
candidates, reviewing the size, structure and composition of the Board,
as well as assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee had not hold any
meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s annual report
and accounts, interim reports and quarterly reports and to provide
advice and comments thereon to the Board. The Audit Committee is
also responsible for reviewing and supervising the Group’'s financial
reporting and internal control procedures.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth, Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy and Mr. Leung Chi Kin. Mr. Chi Chi
Hung, Kenneth is the chairman of the Audit Committee since his
appointment on 29 March 2012

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year. One of the
meetings was attended by the Company’s external auditors so that
the members of the Audit Committee could exchange their views and
concerns with the auditors.

The Audit Committee reviewed the Group's quarterly reports for
the three months and nine months ended 30 September 2011
and 31 March 2012 respectively, interim report for the six months
ended 31 December 2011 and the Group’s audited annual results
for the year ended 30 June 2012. The Audit Committee also made
recommendations to the Board and the management in respect of
the Group’s financial reporting and internal control procedures.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. In March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
was reorganized as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. The Audit
Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited be nominated for appointment as the auditors of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The attendance of each member during the Year is set out below:

Members

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman) EEMIE(ERE)
(appointed on 29 March 2012)

Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy
(appointed on 10 November 2011)

S FIE

Mr. Leung Chi Kin RERSES
Mr. Hui Sin Kwong FFEREAE

(resigned with effect from
10 November 2011)
Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman
(resigned with effect from 29 March 2012)

BREX L
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DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

The Board as a whole is responsible for the procedure of agreeing
to the appointment of its members and for nominating appropriate
person for election by the shareholders of the Company at the general
meeting, either tofill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing
Directors. In considering the appointment of a new director, the Board
will take into account the qualification, ability, working experience,
leadership and professional ethics of the candidates.

According to the articles of association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting ("AGM"), one third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Such
retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the AGM. Any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the
next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election at such meeting.

A circular, containing biographical details of all Directors proposed
to be elected or re-elected at the general meeting and the notice of
general meeting, will be sent to the shareholders of the Company to
enable the shareholders to make an informed decision on election
or re-election of Directors

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The auditors, Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, provide both
statutory audit and non-audit services to the Group. For the Year, fee
for statutory audit for the Group amounts to HK$480,000. Non-audit
services include reporting on certain information included in the
Company’s circulars issued during the Year. Total fee paid by the Group
for non-audit services during the Year was HK$120,000.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the loss and
cash flows for the Year. The Directors have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis, and have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently, with
applicable disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules and
pursuant to the relevant statutory requirements.
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The statement issued by the auditors of the Company, Messrs. HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng, regarding their reporting responsibilities is set
out in the section headed “Independent Auditors'Report”on page 28
of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for internal control of the
Group, including risk management, and sets appropriate policies
having regard to the objectives of the Group. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, has continued to review the effectiveness of the
Group's system of financial and non-financial controls. The system of
internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Controls are monitored by management review.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company provides information in relation to the Group to its
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
including quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars. Such published documents together with the corporate
information of the Group are also available on the Company's website
(http://www.chinanatural.com.hk).

During the Year, separate resolutions were proposed at the general
meetings of the Company for each substantial issue, including the
re-election of Directors.

The chairman of the meeting explained the procedures for conducting
a poll at the beginning of each general meeting of the Company held
during the Year. The results of the poll were published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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Report of the Directors
FERHE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding Company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group's operations for the
Year by business activities is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 30 of this annual
report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
Year (2011: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 111 of this annual
report.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of disposal of subsidiaries during the Year are set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2012 are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Particulars of investment properties of the Group are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEERES
% o

BMERREFENEECEEMBER

IRRBREERB I BN

ARBRIREERAT - HEEMBRRNEBHN
RAPBMAMES - AERERAFEREEH DN
REXBEONMEN A M RAM 6

RErAR
AEBERAFEENREHNAFRIFIANGEEH
Wk e

EETEFRNAFERE (20114 - &) -

T FMBEBE
AEEAERAEPRFENEEREEEGERES
RAFEREFINE ©

MDA
RAEE HEME R RNFEHN G S M RRME
30°

HR2012F6A308 * ZAREEMB AR ZFBEHR
LRE ISR MIFESS -

Y% - BERRE
AEENYE - BERREOESFISHNGRE B

HERMEI3 -

REME
AEEMNREMENFBHNGE PIEHRRME14

22 China Natural Investment Company Limited FE X R EBR QT



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SHARE OPTIONS
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 33 of this annual report and in note 23 to the financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to its shareholders comprised the share premium and accumulated
losses which in aggregate amounts to HK$236,056,373 (2011:
HK$231,513,044). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to its shareholders subject to the provisions
of its memorandum and articles of association and provided that
immediately following the payment of distributions or dividends,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Company’s articles of
association, dividends shall be payable out of the profits or other
reserves, including the share premium account, of the Company.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report
were;

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Wai Hung (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Liang (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 28 December 2011)
Mr. Bai Jian
(appointed on 28 December 2011)
Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary
(resigned with effect from 21 June 2012)
Mr. U Man long
(resigned with effect from 22 November 2011)
Ms. Wu Mei Chu
(retired with effect from 10 November 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Chi Kin
Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy

(appointed on 10 November 2011)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

(appointed on 28 December 2011)
Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman

(resigned with effect from 29 March 2012)
Mr. Hui Sin Kwong

(retired with effect from 10 November 2011)

In accordance with article 112 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Li Wai Hung and Mr. Leung Chi Kin will retire as director
of the Company by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with article 95 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Chen Liang, Mr. Bai Jian, Mr. Tam B Ray, Billy and
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth shall hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and being eligible to offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report are set out in the section headed "Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 11 to 13 of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set outin notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman, Mr. Leung Chi Kin, Mr. Hui Sin Kwong, Mr.
Tam B Ray, Billy and Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth have been appointed
as independent non-executive Directors for a term of one year
expiring on 29 September 2012, 26 November 2012 and 29 September
2012, 9 November 2012 and 27 December 2012 respectively. Their
appointments are subject to retirement by rotation and other
related provisions as stipulated in the articles of association of the
Company.

During the Year, Mr. Hui Sin Kwong and Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman
retired/resigned as independent non-executive Director on 10
November 2011 and 29 March 2012 respectively.

Other than as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2012, none of the Directors or chief executives of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 30 June 2012, the Company has not been notified by any person
(other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers combined
accounted for 30.67% of the total revenue of the Group and sales to
the largest customer included therein accounted for 12.33% of the
total revenue of the Group. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers combined accounted for 14.49% of the total purchases for
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
accounted for 3.75% of the total purchases for the Year.

During the Year, none of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the top five customers and suppliers of the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors or controlling shareholders of
the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or any of their
respective associates had any interest in a business which competes
or may compete with the business of the Group or any conflicts of
interest which had or might have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures”on page 25 of this annual report and“Share-based payment
transactions” in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, at
no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries

INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF

was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 14 to 21 of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee with reference to their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors, employees and other eligible participants. Details of
the scheme are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as at the date of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. In March 2012, the practice of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
was reorganized as HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. A resolution
for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the
auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Mr. Chen Liang
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 14 September 2012
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Independent Auditors' Report
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For the year ended 30 June 2012
EZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

B # & st w F o

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA NATURAL INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Natural Investment Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
30to 110, which comprise the consolidated and company statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2012, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

31/F, Gloucester Tower BB
The Landmark IR
11 Pedder Street SEITE195
Central B ES
Hong Kong ERLTITREE
BHEXARREERLT
Z MR

(RESEEZMA L BERAA])

EEEBERPERAREERAF(EARA ) RE
MEAR(HTEEEE])FNEIEEEI0BMER
AHIS®RE © ERHER2012F6A308 258 KA
ARFBMRAE - RBEZBEFEZREEZENRE
K BAEREPHRREAEERER  UREES
FTECRIEE R E BRI E R

ESHGEMBBRRAREZER

ERREFAEMERES SR ASEMZEEM
BHREENRBBERAGRI 2 BBERERRGEY
BHE  NSEEHEBERAFZRR - REEE
ERRREG A M BRIV E 2 NEREIE » LARER
EMBHRRIFEHRRAFRERMEBMERER
R -

REE 2 BE

EEZEEREBEE S ZECERMM SRS VTR
RERBR  UENDEERME @ BRI 2IRRK
ETAEREMAR BEEFHMARARSE AT AIE
MEMALTE ESFAREIFAEL - EEFHRETES
SRR 2 BB EAETER - R FEL
BE - BFRETERRTREL S ETESR
NEEEERAMEHRREE M EEAEAMHRR

it o

28 China Natural Investment Company Limited B X R E B R LA &



Independent Auditors' Report
TN AZ BRED R

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B ZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

Anauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
30 June 2012 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 14 September 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 30 June 2012
EZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

Revenue

Cost of sales and services provided

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

(Loss)/gain arising on change in
fair value of held-for-trading
investments

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain arising on change in fair value
of investment properties

Impairment losses recognised in
respect of goodwill

Loss before tax

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Gain on revaluation of property upon

transfer to investment property

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Loss per share

Basic and diluted (HK cents per share)

30

WA 5
SHE RIRHE R

=21
AR ,
WERSWER
Gi¢ T
HAb2EE
FIEEERE AT HED
FiEs 2 (B18),/
iz
B A 2 U -

KREMERFEESMES
2 Wzs

REEEHERLZ
R ERE 15

B 1% A 5 18

PSR 8
REEBR 9
REEEAMEE RS

BEEREMERDE
Btz e

REEEEAMX

BRER 12
EARREE (FRBL)

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
HZE20125 HE20114F
6H30H 6H30H
LFE LEFE
HK$ HKS

BT BIT
(restated)

(&L&E5)

57,245,184 41,903,291
(32,085,100) (22,776,507)
25,160,084 19,126,784
1,615,396 156,885
(6,888,529) (5,155,505)
(34,236,269) (20,629,730)
(6,126,074) (5,257,483)
(13,361,417) 7,148,609
727,801 -
21,865,750 10,890,567
(4,000,000) (7,125,121)
(15,243,258) (844,994)
(938,015) (1,062,265)
(16,181,273) (1,907,259)
221,726 -
(15,959,547) (1,907,259)
(1.3) (0.3)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position /

e MBI R

As at 30 June 2012
7201246 A30H

As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 1 July
2012 2011 2010
R2012F R20114F 720104
6H30H 6H30H 7A1H
HK$ HKS HKS
AT 7SI BT
(restated) (restated)
€ s==xl)) € s==x))
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and E
equipment Kk 13 5,420,227 7,440,295 5,762,087
Investment properties BEYE 14 183,300,000 149,240,000 55,800,000
Goodwill GBS 15 22,261,838 26,261,338 -
210,982,065 182,942,133 61,562,087
Current assets MENEE
Inventories 78 16 6,515,295 5,335,280 —
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E A FEWEIE 17 46,807,972 20,261,683 4,425,542
Held-for-trading investments BEEERE 18 25,906,100 30,086,292 38,543,793
Tax recoverable AU Bl R TE 193,221 - -
Bank balances and cash IRTTHETRIR S 19 32,846,867 68,900,061 42,972,539
112,269,455 124,583,316 85,941,874
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR FRIE 20 8,955,004 13,325,753 1,197,353
Tax payable FERFEIE - 1,559,761 =
8,955,004 14,885,514 1,197,353
Net current assets RBEEFE 103,314,451 109,697,802 84,744,521
Total assets less current EEAER
liabilities REAE 314,296,516 292,639,935 146,306,608
Non-current liabilities FREBEME
Deferred tax liabilities EETIBEE 24 1,158,746 675,221 249,696
Net assets BEERE 313,137,770 291,964,714 146,056,912
Capital and reserves EXRRFHE
Share capital N 21 83,125,117 55,416,745 12,961,745
Reserves & 23 230,012,653 236,547,969 133,095,167
Total equity attributable to A2 R HEHE AELS
owners of the Company R 313,137,770 291,964,714 146,056,912

BE=ESR0NFIR4ARERREES M EHRK T
B WHA PATRERERE

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 14 September 2012 and are signed on
its behalf by:

Mr. Li Wai Hung Mr. Chen Liang

ZEWRE RExE
Director Director
Ex S
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Statement of Financial Position

AR B BEARI R

As at 30 June 2012
7201246 A30H

Non-current assets
Investments in
subsidiaries, at cost

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Other receivables
Held-for-trading investments
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Amount due to a subsidiary
Other payables and accruals

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

32

FRBEE
RIBRRZ
BRE - AR

RBEE

FE W B 1 R RRIR
Hfth U IR
RIEEERE

RiTEFELEAS

RBAE
FEAS — I 8 X R 5RIR
H b 5RIB K 5T B A

RBEERE
EEFE
EXK#E
[EEN

G

RERAHE

of the Company

22

22
17
18

22
20

21
23(b)

As at
30 June 2012
7201245

6H30H
HK$
BT

As at

30 June 2011
720114
6H30H
HKS

BT

788 780
292,381,123 276,119,127
12,547,654 207,300
= 9,991,292
16,271,973 2,140,546
321,200,750 288,458,265
1,000,000 =
182,753 691,961
1,182,753 691,961
320,017,997 287,766,304
320,018,785 287,767,084
83,125,117 55,416,745
236,893,668 232,350,339
320,018,785 287,767,084

China Natural Investment Company Limited B X R E B R LA &



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARNEDE

For the year ended 30 June 2012

HE2012F6A308 ILFE

Balance as at 1 July 2010
Loss and total
comprehensive

expense for the year

Issue of new shares by
way of placing

Transfer of reserve upon
lapse of share options

Balance as at
30 June 2011

Loss for the year
Gain on revaluation of

property upon transfer
to investment property

Total comprehensive
expense for the year

Issue of new shares by
way of open offer

Share issue expenses

Balance as at 30 June
2012

Annual Report 2012 &3

P2010%F7 818 2 &8

TEEBERER
R

R ERETT
AR

R B R 2
fApER

20116 A30H
2EER

TEEFR

ERERENE
BEER
W

TEERHEBREX

RRAZEMET
R

RN ETRX

7201256 A30H
2EER

Total equity

Share Property attributable

Share Share options revaluation Accumulated to owners of
capital premium reserve reserve losses the Company
YN

BRE L/ 2N

k& ROEE wE  ENRE  RER  EReE

HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

BT BT o BT BT BT
(restated) (restated)

(&=5))  (8E50)

(Note 26)
a9

12,961,745 190,974,986 6,392,043 - (64,271,862)  146,056912

= = = = (1,907,259) (1,907,259)
42,455,000 105,360,061 = = - 147815061
= = (5,554,748) = 5,554,748 =
55,416,745 296,335,047 837,295 - (60,624,373) 291,964,714
- - - - (16,181,273) (16,181,273)

- - - 221,726 - 221,726
- - - 221,726 (16,181,273) (15,959,547)
27,708,372 11,083,349 - - - 38,791,721
- (1,659,118) - - - (1,659,118)
83,125,117 305,759,278 837,295 221,726 (76,805,646) 313,137,770




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeERERER

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Dividend income
Depreciation
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Impairment losses recognised on
trade and other receivables
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of goodwill
Gain arising on change in fair value
of investment properties
Write-off of property, plant
and equipment
Write-off of inventories

Movements in working capital

Increase in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade
and other receivables

Decrease in held-for-trading
investments

(Decrease)/increase in trade
and other payables

Cash (used in)/generated
from operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

34

RETHRLRE
BR 15 A B 18
FHEE
MBHA
AR B YA
e
HE B A Bz s
E S REMERKIAD
R BIEEER
PR E DR REE R

REMERNTEES
PEEAE 2 W
AR

Tr &M AR

LEELHE

FEEM

Z 5 K H At fE U E
A (3E0)

BEEBRE

Z 5K E M E
CRA), /0

L (FTA) Bz
iﬁi
B EBR G

RS (A,
PI1SIR &% 5

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
HZE20125F HZ20114F
6H30H 6H30H
IFE LEFE

HK$ HKS

%7_13 /%75
(15,243,258) (844,994)
(391,241) (63,703)
(8,000) (39,360)
2,237,670 1,375,120
(727,801) -
783,768 -
4,000,000 7,125,121
(21,865,750) (10,890,567)
1,347,036 53,467
465,205 482,529
(29,402,371) (2,802,387)
(1,710,702) (353,160)
6,683,653 (3,581,755)
4,180,192 8,457,501
(4,129,886) 5,315,844
(24,379,114) 7,036,043
(2,202,405) -
(26,581,519) 7,036,043

China Natural Investment Company Limited B X R E B R LA &



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,\\/\ Eﬁi/ﬂbi%

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B ZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for investment properties

Payments for property, plant
and equipment

Advance of loan receivable

Deposits paid in respect of a
proposed acquisition

Proceeds from disposal of
investment properties

Net cash inflow arising on disposal
of subsidiaries

Net cash outflow arising on
acquisition of subsidiaries

Dividends received

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of new
shares by way of placing
Proceeds from issue of new shares
by way of open offer
Share issue expenses

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Representing:
Bank balances and cash

Annual Report 2012 &3

RETHESRE
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L EN YN
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U E FRETR
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B
HEREYEHE
P58 508
HENBRRIZES
MAERE 30
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B FE

RETHMARFE
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PR BRIRIRER
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BN B TRISX

BMERBS
b ks o

RERASEEORD),/
bpilIbER

FANHRE
kBEEE

FRNBEE
RBE%E

Rk :
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Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
HZE20125F HZE20114F
6H30H 6H30H
LFE LEFE
HK$ HKS

;ﬁi /%TE
(16,094,250) (78,252,647)
(2,755,611) (4,583,707)
(12,000,000) -
(23,000,000) =
4,800,000 -
2,046,342 -
- (46,190,291)

8,000 39,360
391,241 63,703
(46,604,278) (128,923,582)
- 147,815,061
38,791,721 -
(1,659,118) -
37,132,603 147,815,061
(36,053,194) 25,927,522
68,900,061 42,972,539
32,846,867 68,900,061
32,846,867 68,900,061




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2012
EZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

1.

36

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Natural Investment Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, and its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company’s head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong is Unit 1903, 19th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong. The
Company’s registered office in the Cayman Islands is PO.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKS"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations (‘new
and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related Party Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

(Amendments)

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

—REHR
PERAKREARQB(TARE]) TIREFH
SHERRERFASHEEMKLAEHR R
BREERAR  WREBROREEHAR S
P PR~ = (B 32 P 1) B S AR (B Z 4R 1)
e

RRB 2 BERENMER N EEZLEMWEARN
B 7 T 55 18 168-2005% {5 12 1 0 78 B 1918
1903% « RAAINF SRS 2 ek M FEAL
RPO. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands ©

ARBR—FREERAR  EXEMBA
A2 EBHN A M MARM T3 -

RAEMBBRRZET(TETDES - B
RARBNIEEE -

FERFT B RAEIER] BB MR EER
(TEBMBREER])

RAFE  AEBEERATIIHEESFHAD
RE([EAEFHAE ) BEMZHEREE
FTEER - R R ([ #iE R BRI BB
BmE2EA]) -

EBMBREED  2010FEBIERE %R
(&aT) ZEHETE R

BB RS & HARMERER AT H
EAEHCHD) SHBIF 75 7 LB

YrrERERR

BT REE BE-SREEZEHE
ST (ERT)

BB G AR ELERE - REHBEE
1258 (153])

BRCTENFE 4 BHIEE
(2009 F&(ET)

EE(BEBRBEHRE SEESERIBHR
REZEE)-

REE 1457 (ERT)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2012
B ZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material effect
on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial
statements and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” (applied in
advance of their effective date)

The Group has applied amendments to HKAS 12 titled “Deferred
Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets”in advance of their effective
date (annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012).
Under the amendments, investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model in accordance with
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”are presumed to be recovered
through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred tax, unless
the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

As a result, the Group’s investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model have been presumed
to be recovered through sale for the purpose of measuring
deferred tax in respect of such properties. The application of
the amendments has resulted in deferred tax liabilities being
decreased by HK$113,953 and HKS$2,650,127 as at 1 July
2010 and 30 June 2011, respectively, with the corresponding
adjustment being recognised in accumulated loss under the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. In addition, the
application has resulted in the Group's income tax expense
being reduced by HK$2,536,174 and loss for the year being
decreased by the same amount for the year ended 30 June
2011.

In the current year, no deferred tax has been provided for in
respect of changes in fair value of such investment properties,
whereas previously deferred tax liabilities were provided for
in relation to the changes in fair value of such investment
properties. The application of the amendments has resulted
in the Group’s income taxes for the year ended 30 June 2012
being reduced by HK$3,688,018 and loss for the year being
decreased by the same amount.

Annual Report 2012 &3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T A B TSR R M5

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

FERFT B RAEIER] BB MR E XA
([EBMBHREER D) (a)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

Summary of the effect of the above change in accounting
policy

The effect of the above change in accounting policy described XXt e R AN BA R R B A
above on the results for the current and prior periods by GETHERERAZSHRIEENEREKNNT
line items presented in the consolidated statement of ZmF

RS RREs 2 L EME

comprehensive income is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
BZE20125F B Z=20114F
6HA30HLFE 6H30BILFE
HK$ HKS
AIT BT
Decrease in income tax expense REFEMSRASZ R
and loss for the year BB (3,688,018) (2,536,174)
Impact on basic and diluted YEREARBEEE
loss per share W&
Basic loss per share before BRI FRER
adjustment (HK cents) B &AL (1.6) ©.7)
Adjustment in relation to FERB B TERE1255
application of amendments (BET) e RO SR EE (P L)
to HKAS 12 (HK cents) 0.3 04
Reported basic and diluted loss Fr 2 A SRR R #EE
per share (HK cents) B CEL) (1.3) 03)

The effect of the above change in accounting policy on the
financial positions of the Group as at 1 July 2010 and 30 June
2011 are as follows: i

As at 1 July 2010
(originally stated)
R201057H18
(REL7I)

HKS

BT

Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE 363,649

it &I

REFBHAEBEMN2010F781H
K20114F6 308 M B 7S AR S 3 Ak M 2 & 0

As at 1 July 2010

Adjustment (restated)
FE 20107410

(REE51)
HKS HKS
BT AT

(113,953) 249,696
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements /
T A BTSRRI 5

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B ZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

FERFT B RAEIERT BB MR EER
([EBMBHREER D) (#)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

Summary of the effect of the above change in accounting
policy (continued)

LlEHRREB 2 LEMEE)

As at 30 June 2011

(originally stated)
R201156A830H

As at 30 June 2011
Adjustment (restated)
FE HR201156HA30H
(RRE5)

(REZ25)

Deferred tax liabilities

EREHRRE

Except as described above, the Group has not early applied

the following new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

HKFRS 13
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20
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Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income'
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle?

Government Loans?

Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities®

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures*

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance?

Fair Value Measurement?

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2012
EZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

2.

40

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition.

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

FERFT B RAEIER] BB MR EER
([EBMBEHREER D) (#)

0 BEAR01E7AB XA BRAZEE
HA R

2 FEAR0BEIAIBRABRAZEE
HA

g BEAR04F1 1B A BRAZEE
HA

3 BEAR0F1AIBRABRIAZEE
HA

EBUBREEAFRERMTIA

B HR SR FHo5R & mt T A (720094
M ABEM)SIERBERMEES B RAEMH
FRIE ° R2010FERTNE B KRS 2R 59
GeMTIAESATECHAGEIERAEMN
NEUBTERRIRE ©

BEVBRELENEIRREFFBELS
FPEAEIGRERMT A - MRALKAEREA
WEMRTREE  ERGFIREHK A
NFEFE - LER  REERAFEMAE
MRBEBENRERENEHIRE - AR(E
BIXNEAERAEEAENENANESR
ENEBRE  —RONERGHHHEER
RHIZBESHAK AN GT 8 - PIA B BRI E KR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2012
B ZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities relates to
the presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial liability
(designated as at fair value through profit or loss) attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically,
under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 July 2015 and that application of the new
standard may have impact on amounts reported in respect of
the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that
effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised
2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control
that contains three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.
Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with
complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK (SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control
should be classified. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the
rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas
jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting or proportionate
accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted
provided that all of these five standards are applied early at
the same time. The directors have not yet performed a detailed
analysis of the impact of the application of these Standards and
hence have not yet quantified the extent of the impact.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS
7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS
13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in
the Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1 July 2013 and that the application of
the new Standard may affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and result in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income (continued)

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group's annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation
of items of other comprehensive income will be modified
accordingly when the amendments are applied in the future
accounting periods.

Other than as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material effect on the Group's financial
performance and position and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interest
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

Deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions
of the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that Standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests'proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or another measurement basis required by another
Standard.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the measurement period about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period
does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would
be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or
loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of
that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. A cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is indication that
the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Ondisposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the course of the ordinary
activities, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the
following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established.

Interest income from a financial asset (other than a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss) is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Rental income is recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for operating leases (see the accounting
policy below).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land for own use

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building
are considered separately for the purpose of lease classification,
unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, in which case the entire lease
is generally treated as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
land is accounted for as operating leases and amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation,
in which case, such exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income in the consolidated financial
statements and will be reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Forthe purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Share options granted to employees and others providing
similar services in an equity-settled share-based payment
arrangement

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end of the reporting
period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

For share options that are vested at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately
to profit or loss.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities. For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS
40 "Investment Property”, such properties are presumed to be
recovered through sale. Such a presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through
sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles
set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to
how the properties will be recovered).

Current or deferred tax for the year is recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. On initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at cost including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is indication that they may
be impaired.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another Standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease under that Standard.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another Standard,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that Standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs, including an appropriate portion of fixed and
variable overhead expenses, are determined on a first-in-first-
out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination
Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are
initially measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. At
the end of the subsequent reporting period, such contingent
liabilities are measured at the higher of the amount that would
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 37 and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into two categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") and loans and receivables. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

Foran AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FV/TPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL
on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

FESHBEK#)

SRMIAE)

THEERERS TH(E)

BT %
BEBRFRADELBEE EHEKA A RS
AR B AR I B RS2 2 5 0% - BRE AR Thi%
SHMEBEZEMFHNBER 2 REHHE - B
MR AT ARREAR(BIEEXE
BR AR AT k2R D 2 — B R B W FI =
ZEEBR RPMAREARE RITE) ERE
EEREFEZFE o

MEBRXDIRERNREERER  EDEA
KEREEAFEARZSREERN -

BRmRIE N FIEARZZHEAE
EeRABAREERNEERKLEERY
RFEARZEBRAE  MesBAKEa
FRRATFEARZERAR -

T

HWERBEBRTIER  ABRBEARKERER:

TEARTIAFHABLE MU : 3

RNFHERE - BRAEEA G E1E

ZE#FREMITEAEAS —#n Bl
HHR BRI HERNRE 5

BRARBEEZITELA - WA A
fEREDRTA -

China Natural Investment Company Limited B X R EBR LA &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= A8

AR E SRR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B ZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

Afinancial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified
into financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which case the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when a financial asset is transferred, the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(if) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of

the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 3. FESFBEE#E)

Related parties (continued) BEAL(E)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following (b) MBEE - BI/FES TIE MY
conditions applies: (continued) (%)

(iv)  oneentityisajoint venture of a third entity and vy —ERAF=-FEBHNSER
the other entity is an associate of the third entity; A MEMERBRE=1E#

o) lUNCIIK

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan V) ZEBRKXILERBENE
for the benefit of employees of either the 2l DRARE E AL B E
Group or an entity related to the Group; MEERZESRAMmR

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by Vi)  HEBREX@PTHEBIATERI
a person identified in (a); and SHERES &

(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant i) REOFTHIATHZERS
influence over the entity or is a member of Eﬁ% E“?TJZJ;' ZEB(HZ
the key management personnel of the entity ERAOSNE)FTEEEENX
(or of a parent of the entity). Ele

Close members of the family of a person are those family EATORELHRKEREEERR FHRE
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced HerE8ZANTAZZALTEZENRENK
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. =

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 4. FBERSHHEREZETHABAEZERR

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY f&at

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which TEFE A EE3FT I 2 A B & ST BURE - B
are described in note 3, management is required to make BFEE BRI REEEMARMGH 2 EE
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying B8 E 2 RREMEED A6 - Bt REBRF& - &
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent —rﬁ ST REBERZDERBEAERBREERE
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions REMAEZEMRZAEEMED - R4
are based on historical experience and other factors that are REERINZEMET

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed et RIBABRR S HFEETSEMN - S5
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are HEt 2 EBNMRATEEH - AIEBEZERGE
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if ST R c MZIBEHT 22T
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the LZZHRAREME  AIBEZERNE RN
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current & EARITER o

and future periods.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As described in note 14, the investment properties were
revalued at the end of the reporting period on market value
existing use basis by independent professional valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the judgement, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market for similar
properties and uses assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been reallocated. The value-in-use
calculation requires management to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
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5.

68

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

Provision of diagnostic testing
and healthcare services,
manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products

Provision of advertising and
public relations services

Rental income from
investment properties

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision marker, for the purposes
of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance. The Group's operating and reportable segments

under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Provision of diagnostic testing and healthcare services,
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products

Provision of advertising and public relations services

Property investment

Research and development

Heft 2 BRI

N ARGERRTS -

SUE MIHE
B
REESR
NEARTS
BREMEZ
HEWA

5. A
AEEAEEZ WASKAT :

Year ended
30 June
2012
BZ2012F

6A30H
LEFE
HK$
BT

Year ended
30 June
2011
HZE20114F
6H30H
IEFE

HKS

PETT

25,222,535 27,324,327
26,029,520 11,010,741

5,993,129 3,568,223
57,245,184 41,903,291
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by reportable segment:

6. ZSEER®
PN ES |
AT AAEEA S|AIBERAREEZH:

Provision of

diagnostic
testing and
healthcare
services, Provision of
manufacturing  advertising
and sale of  and public Research
pharmaceutical relations Property and
products services investment development
RUEDERRR
RERS  HiE REELR MEHE
R#EEHER N JES MERE B
HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT
Year ended 30 June 2012  EZ201256A308 LFE
Segment revenue AERA 25,222,535 26,029,520 5,993,129 - 57,245,184
Segment results PEER (13,367,660)  (4,644,663) 26,946,375 - 8,934,052
Other income Htp A 1,615,396
Loss arising on change in BEEERBNTE
fair value of held-for- EHEL 2 ER
trading investments (13,361,417)
Gain on disposal of HEHB AR
subsidiaries 727,801
Central administration costs R RTHEIX (13,159,090)
Loss before tax BRATATEE (15,243,258)
Year ended 30 June 2011 HZE2011F6A30BLFE
Segment revenue DERA 27324327 11,010,741 3,568,223 - 41903291
Segment results L ES (15,789,666) 1,633,200 13,302,743 (10,070) (863,793)
Other income HplA 156,885
Gain arising on change in HEBEERBLTE
fair value of held-for- BEEL W
trading investments 7,148,609
Central administration costs R R{THEI (7,286,695)
Loss before tax PR AR IR (844,994)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZEERM®E
Segment revenues and results (continued) ﬁﬁ%i&%%ﬁ(@)

70

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from

external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the

year (2011: Nil).

Segment results represents the (loss)/profit incurred or earned

by each segment without allocation of central administration

costs, other income, (loss)/gain arising on change in fair value

of held-for-trading investments, gain on disposal of subsidiaries

and income tax expense. This is the measure reported to the

MERZWAEKREBINAREZIWA B
EWIE’“*EF%E’%(zomi DHE) o

DEEERENEEERRRZ(BE), &
Ao WARDEHRITHMA - EMUBA - #F

EEBERER
ﬁT:\L HENB A

FEEFELEZ(FBE) K
Bz W RATERFS o It

ERTEHELERREUNRESRERK

chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource .:HE’\*EEEEZET
allocation and assessment of segment performance.
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERER

As at As at
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
120124 20114
6A30H 6H30H
HKS$ HKS
B IT BT
(restated)
(&E5)
Segment assets DHEEE
Provision of diagnostic testing TR BRI &
and healthcare services, IREEARTS ~ BdE
manufacturing and sale of NEHE B
pharmaceutical products 17,262,515 52,800,745
Provision of advertising and ?%ﬁgi&
public relations services NEARRTE 37,384,242 44,619,509
Property investment MERE 184,290,770 149,475,609
Research and development fiff 9 B e 2 - 12,735
Total segment assets WO EE 238,937,527 246,908,598
Unallocated assets ROMLEE 84,313,993 60,616,851
Consolidated assets HEBE 323,251,520 307,525,449
Segment liabilities SHEEE
Provision of diagnostic testing TR BRI &
and healthcare services, IREEARTS ~ BE R
manufacturing and sale of $HE B
pharmaceutical products 4,425,775 8,437,067
Provision of advertising and RHES
public relations services Afﬁﬁﬁ% 2,766,150 2,368,963
Property investment MERE 1,427,068 1,772,032
Total segment liabilities woyEaE 8,618,993 12,578,062
Unallocated liabilities AP BE 1,494,757 2,982,673
Consolidated liabilities meEaE 10,113,750 15,560,735
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ZEER®W
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PEEERAEE)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and RERSBRERSESERZER :

allocating resources between segments:

all assets other than unallocated assets (mainly
comprising held-for-trading investments and certain
bank balances and cash) are allocated to reportable
segments; and

all liabilities other than unallocated liabilities (mainly
comprising deferred tax liabilities) are allocated to
reportable segments.

Other segment information

BANPEEE(Z2EREFEEER

BERETROTEFNRER)IN

B

BEDDETAIZHRIE + &

BASPEBE(ZZ2E/ELENIR
BE)IN FEAEBEADET A 2H

awy
4R e

Hipn BEH

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
BZ20125F BZE20114
6H30H 6H30H
I“HFE IEFE
HKS$ HKS
BT BT
Depreciation mE
Provision of diagnostic testing and REZEDAIR &
healthcare services, manufacturing RERTS - &ER
and sale of pharmaceutical products §H & 25 1,406,199 1,201,321
Provision of advertising and RHES &
public relations services NEBRRTS 557,838 141,903
Unallocated depreciation RAOMITE 273,633 31,896
Total A&t 2,237,670 1,375,120
Additions to non-current assets REITBEE
Provision of diagnostic testing and REZEDAIR &
healthcare services, manufacturing RIERTS - RER
and sale of pharmaceutical products SHE B 682,582 11,772,659
Provision of advertising and REES R
public relations services NEARRTS 603,638 28,057,650
Property investment MERE 16,094,250 78,252,647
Unallocated non-current assets ANOMIERBNE E 1,469,391 960,231
Total Gl 18,849,861 119,043,187
Impairment losses recognised BEEEHERZ
in respect of goodwill SR 1B 7S
Provision of diagnostic testing and REZEDAIR &
healthcare services, manufacturing RIERTS - RER
and sale of pharmaceutical products SHE B - 7,125,121
Provision of advertising and REES R
public relations services NEARRTS 4,000,000 =
Total = 4,000,000 7,125,121
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
Geographical information
Substantially all of the Group's revenue from external customers
and non-current assets are located in Hong Kong.

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are
as follows:

Customer A ! BEA!

Revenue from provision of diagnostic testing and healthcare
services, manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical
products.

B The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group in the respective year.

7. OTHER INCOME 7.

Interest income from bank deposits RITIF KA 2 WA

Other interest income H A F) BURA

Dividend income from e EMKEEHEE 2
listed investments & B U A

Services income BRAEWA

Sundry income FETEIA

PEERE)

i B
AEBEABHUALKEANRES Tk
REBESRIAES -

FEEFER
RIBEFER » ([HAEBRAI AR 0% 2 BP
W AR

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011

B Z20126F HZE20114F
6H30H 6H30H

HFE HFE
HK$ HKS

BT BT

7,122,635 N/ATNE A ?

‘ R ETR R R R ARTS - BLE R IHE %

mZ YA °
’ HEWATEEBFEEASEEZKA10%
PATR
H g A
Group
KEH
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
B Z2012F HZE20114F
6H30H 6H30H
IFE LEFE
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
151,201 52,401
240,040 11,302
8,000 39,360
540,000 -
676,155 53,822
1,615,396 156,885
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax:
Hong Kong profits tax

Deferred tax (Note 24):
Current year

REFHIA
BBMEH

TR IR (P E24) -
RERE

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss
per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

as follows:

Loss before tax

Tax at Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate of 16.5%
Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not
taxable for tax purpose
Tax effect of temporary
differences not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Others

Income tax expense for the year
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iR B 1R

B FIBHE 16.5%5 B
HBIR

TALIIBIE B
yu

BARBULA BT
ye

AR B RO
yu

SR EARRBS
w18

RERBSERORETE

Hit

REZREHRMAX

Frie®ip %
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
BZE2012F HZE20114
6H30H 6H30H
LFE LEFE
HKS$ HKS
BT BIT
(restated)
(&&E5)
449,423 636,740
488,592 425,525
938,015 1,062,265

B8 NS B T4 P i8] 6 J2 2 i T 8 SR A e A

2 165%:TE -

AERFZRAXBEGE2AKERZER

ZERRIAT ¢

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
HZE20125F HZ20114F
6H30H 6H30H
LFE LEFE

HK$ HKS

BT BT
(restated)

(&&&E5)
(15,243,258) (844,994)
(2,515,137) (139,424)
2,493,449 2,947,060
(3,791,564) (2,050,867)
212,967 141,457
- (685,368)

4,533,534 849,407
4,766 -
938,015 1,062,265
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9.  LOSS FOR THE YEAR 9. ZXEEFHE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/ AFEBREMR,GIA)THIEA -
(crediting):
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
#Z2012F 20114
6A30H 6H30H
IFE IEFE
HKS$ HKS
BT BIT
Gross rental income from WEYF 2 B
investment properties WA (5,993,129) (3,568,223)
Less: direct operating expenses W B ERX 373,353 252,374
(5,619,776) (3,315,849)
Employee benefits expense: EERAMAX :
Directors’ emoluments (Note 10) E=Me (FiE10) 1,712,452 1,259,286
Other staff’s salaries and allowances — Hfh 8 T 7 & &8, 28,426,956 15,739,162
Other staff's retirement Hith 8 T ZRIK
scheme contributions raETEI R 862,126 555,326
Other staff's welfare Hfib 8 TR 185,835 71,480
Total employee benefits expense 1B ERAI4H 2 31,187,369 17,625,254
Operating lease rentals in respect HERRE 28
of rented premises HEHRS 4,501,948 1,561,611
Depreciation of property, M - BRER&E
plant and equipment ZITE 2,237,670 1,375,120
Auditors' remuneration ZE AN S 480,000 480,000
Write-off of property, plant and BEEtA THEMEEER]
equipment (included in 2% BER
“other operating expenses’) XA MAR 1,347,036 53,467
Write-off of inventories (included in BEFtA [$HE RIBHRBEK A ]
“cost of sales and services provided”) — ZTFE#MER 465,205 482,529
Impairment losses recognised on trade B &t A [Eh&EEH |
and other receivables (included in 2B 5 R E b e FRIE
“other operating expenses”) 2 BRERBEEE 783,768 =
Impairment losses recognised HEBERRIRE
in respect of goodwill fE18 4,000,000 7,125,121
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz s (727,801) -
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10.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Company’s

directors were as follows:

Year ended 30 June 2012

Executive directors
Mr. Li Wai Hung (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Liang

(@appointed on 28 December 2011)
Mr. Bai Jian

(appointed on 28 December 2011)
Mr. U Man long

(resigned on 22 November 2011)
Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary

(resigned on 21 June 2012)
Ms. Wu Mei Chu

(retired on 10 November 2011)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth
(@appointed on 28 December 2011)
Mr. Leung Chi Kin
Mr. Tam B Ray Billy
(appointed on 10 November 2011)
Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman
(resigned on 29 March 2012)
Mr. Hui Sin Kwong
(retired on 10 November 2011)
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BZ22012F6A30H LFE

HTES
ZEEEE (FE)
Rkt
(P01 E12 A 8AERT)
HER &4
(R2011F 12 28R EZT)
FxBELE
(R2011411 A2 BEHE)
ERELE
(7201246 B21 HEHE)
HEHT L
(R2011E11 A108RHE)

BIFHTES
EY e
(2011128 8HER()
REREH
BHAEE
(R0NFENA10BERT)
BRELE
(7201263 A20R BHE)
FEAEE
(72011511 A10B3£4E)

10.

ESHE

ENSENTFAARSEBOMEMT

Other emoluments

Rtz

Salaries and Contributions
other to retirement
benefits scheme
BINER
HEfS

benefits
N
At fER
HKS$ HKS$
B BT

- 217,934 10,800 228,734
- 306,451 5,250 311,701

= 153,226 5,250 158,476

; 94,667 - 94,667

- 403,200 12,250 415,450

= 303,333 4,333 307,666
30,645 - - 30,645
60,000 - - 60,000
38,500 - - 38,500
53,613 - - 53,613
13,000 - - 13,000
195,758 1,478,811 37,883 1,712,452
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10.

11.

76

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

10. EEME @)

Other emoluments
Hitde

Salaries and
other

Contributions
to retirement
benefits scheme
RINEF
IR

benefits
Fek
HitgFl
HK$ HKS

BT BT

Year ended 30 June 2011 HZ011%E6A30BILEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. U Man long TXER4E - 240,000 - 240,000
Mr. Li Wai Hung TEBTE - 140,000 7,000 147,000
Mr. Chow Kai Wah, Gary FRELE = 360,000 12,000 372,000
Mr. Wu Kai R A

(resigned on 2 August 2010) (R2010E8 A2ABHT) - 40,000 - 40,000
Ms. Wu Mei Chu HEFI L - 287,857 4429 292,286
Independent non-executive directors B EHTES
Mr. Chan Yip Man, Norman BRENLE 72,000 - - 72,000
Mr. Hui Sin Kwong AEREE 36,000 = - 36,000
Mr. Leung Chi Kin RERELE 60,000 - - 60,000

168,000 1,067,857 23429 1,259,286
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 11. EEMSE

None (2011: none) of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group was a director of the Company. The
emoluments of five (2011: five) individuals with the highest

emoluments were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e hEMmEA
Contributions to retirement RIREFIET S
benefits scheme HR

AEFBRAUGREHEMATHEEALAX
RAEIEEZ (20114« #&) - AAFZ(20114F : A7)
ALZESMES0T

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
BZE2012F HZE20114F
6H30H 6H30H
IEFE LEFE

HKS$ HKS

BT BT
4,006,243 2,271,035
57,800 34,571
4,064,043 2,305,606
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11. EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued) 11. EEME @)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZMESMBENSEENT
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
BZ2012%F BZE20114
6H30H 6H30H
LEE IEFE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0007 7T 4 5
HK$1,000,001 to HKS 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1 -
5 5
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any FRAEETESNTFENESTHZ AL
of the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including EMeAL(BEEERES) (20115 F)
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon YERI S E I A SR B AN AR B S 1E R
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2011: HIREZfE - FAMEERES (20114 :
Nil). None of the directors waived any emoluments during D)HeMe -

the year (2011: Nil).

12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. SKREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RABIHEE AREERERREEER IR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the AT 8RR E

following data:

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
BZ20125F BZE20114
6H30H 6H30H
IFE IEFE
HK$ HKS
BT BIT
(restated)
(geE5))
Loss BB
Loss for the purpose of basic and MERERREEEE
diluted loss per share (Loss msE 2 E18
attributable to owners of (RRaHmE A
the Company) FEEE1E) (16,181,273) (1,907,259)
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12. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 12. BREBE#E)

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
BZ2012F HZE2011F
6A30H 6H30H

IEFE IEFE
Number of Number of
shares shares

g ¢! Sk 4=

Number of shares RGOEE
Weighted average number of HERERREEEE
ordinary shares for the purpose & 2 &A% e
of basic and diluted loss per share FHE 1,220,686,649 652,740,919
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Cost

Balance as at 1 July 2010
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Additions

Transfer to investment property
Disposals

Balance as at 30 June 2011
Additions

Disposals of subsidiaries
Transfer to investment property
Disposals

Balance as at 30 June 2012

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Balance as at 1 July 2010

Depreciation expense

Transfer to investment property

Eliminated on disposals

Balance as at 30 June 2011
Depreciation expense
Disposals of subsidiaries
Transfer to investment property
Eliminated on disposals

Balance as at 30 June 2012

Carrying amounts
Balance as at 30 June 2012

Balance as at 30 June 2011
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KA

01067 A 18 2 &8
WEHBAR

1A

ERERanE

e

2011456 A308 7 £
A

HERBAT
ERSRANE

L&

201246 A308 2 £k

R RERAE

1201057 A 18 2 &84
TEBH
ERSRENE

WL ERHHE

1201146 A30H 2 &8x

REER
HERE AR
SRERAMF
R SR

1201286 A30H 2 &8k

fREE

1201286 A30H 2 &gk

201186 A30H 2 &gk

Land and
buildings

TR
&
HKS

BT

13. Y% - BERRE

REE

Laboratory  Leasehold
equipment improvements

 {E
e &
HS

=
BJL

Office
equipment,
furniture
and fixtures
HAR
EE£E
HKS

BT

Motor
vehicles

RE
4
BT

5300000 1743851 - 565461 134959 7744271
- 1580391 597521 641962 - 2819874

- 9143 261135 138119 - 407
(4542857) - - - - (a5a85)
- - (0640 (409281) - 4s99)
T4 3915485 3158216 2179271 134959 10145074
- 190632 68413 188085 S YTl

- - (4800 (235799) - (5905%)
(757,4) - - - - )
- (86721 (13483%)  (335050) - 351027

- 93 213918 3489278 134959 8042816
#4167 147971 - 457504 62502 1982184
26071 468250 209060 42039 9500 1375120
(246,071) - - - - (e07)
- - (1774 (38730) - (406454
#4167 1886221 191336 481013 102042 2704779
34702 523074 S3512 1103465 2917 237600
- - (30979) (46921) - (77900)
(78869) - - - - (78869)
- (7548 Q0936 (3832) - 16309)

- 603857 49458 1299230 134950 2622589

- 1585539 1644640 2,190,048 - 5420227
712976 2009264 296680 1698258 2917 74402
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13.

14.

80

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:

Land and buildings 5%
Laboratory equipment 20%
Leasehold improvements 20%
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 20% — 40%
Motor vehicles 25%

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REYF KL FlE

Investment properties,
at fair value

Balance at beginning of year G {14584

Additions NE

Disposals &

Transfer from property, EEEYXE  HE
plant and equipment B

Gain on property revaluation — ¥JEEH IR

Balance at end of year FRAEER

13.

14.

M~ BE R
PAEME - R RREEB R THEERN
HIREEFNE

T RIEF 5%
BERERE 20%
E=iE 20%
MAERE  REKEEESE 20% — 40%
RE 25%
BREWHE
Group
REH

As at As at

30 June 2012 30 June 2011

20125 R20114

6H30H 6H30H

HK$ HKS

BT BT

149,240,000 55,800,000

16,094,250 78,252,647

(4,800,000) —

900,000 4,296,786

21,865,750 10,890,567

183,300,000 149,240,000
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above
comprise:

Land in Hong Kong: REBZ i :
Long-term leases REIHEE
Medium-term leases REIEE

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 30
June 2012 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out at that date by RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL"), a firm
of independent qualified professional valuers not connected
to the Group. RHL employs professional valuers who are
members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and have
appropriate professional qualifications and recent experience
in the location and category of the investment properties
being valued. The valuation was arrived at by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, a property previously
included in “Property, plant and equipment” was transferred
to investment property due to a change in use as evidenced
by commencement of operating leases to third parties. The
difference at the date of change in use between the carrying
amount of the property and its fair value amounting to
HKS$221,726 was recognised as a revaluation gain in other
comprehensive income.

Annual Report 2012 &3

BREME®)
LRBAmE T FEEE

Group

AEEH
As at As at
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
720114
IE=

A20125F
6530H
HK$ HKS
BT 75T

97,500,000 70,140,000
85,800,000 79,100,000
183,300,000 149,240,000

NEBREYER2012%6 308 A FET)
RIEEAEBWEBENE LA EREEM
BRIKFITELERBE AR AT ([ RFITR
ZEETHHEEE - XFTEAZEEMN
EMARSIEMBEKE  THEAEEK
BEERREWEERENEZMERES
BIRHEER - HED2REMBEREUY
EZRSERMETE °

BEAEEMERRINLETHETAFE
IABRIES - MEREARTEREAGFGE
W BRARBREDE

B E2012F6H30BILFE - ARME=ZF
ARCEHEMSBREEZ(L - BT
A% BEREE I ZDEEBEZIREY
¥ -RARZEES(H  MERAERE
NFEEZE 2 Z5221,726/8 TR E b 2 U
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15.

82

GOODWILL

Cost
Balance as at 1 July 2010

Additions arising from:

— Acquisition of Island Kingdom

Company Limited and its
subsidiaries (Note 29)
— Acquisition of PR ASIA

Consultants Limited (Note 29)

Balance as at 30 June 2011
and 2012

Impairment

Balance as at 1 July 2010
Provided for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2011
Provided for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2012

Carrying amounts

Balance as at 30 June 2012

Balance as at 30 June 2011

%S
201067 A1 B 2 &84
E RO EIHEE 2B
— UYg#&Island Kingdom
Company Limited
REMBAF (MiEE29)
— BTN BB R AR
(Fft3E29)

20114 % 201246 530H
2R

A

R201057 A1 8 2 &6k
FANEE

1201156 A30H 2 &5k
FREE

120126 A308 2 &8

AREE

1201256 A30H 2 &5

R2011%F6 A30H 2 &5

7,125,121

26,261,838

33,386,959

7125121

7,125,121

4,000,000

11,125,121

22,261,838

26,261,838
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15.

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill

Forthe year ended 30 June 2011, for the purposes of impairment
testing, goodwill was allocated to two cash-generating units
("CGUs") representing (i) the Island Kingdom Company Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “Island Kingdom Group”) which
are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
pharmaceutical products; and (ii) PR ASIA Consultants Limited
("PR ASIA") which is engaged in the provision of public relations
services.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs were determined based
on value-in-use calculations using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
the management. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3% for the Island Kingdom
Group and 5% for PR ASIA. The cash flow projections of the
Island Kingdom Group and PR ASIA are discounted at pre-tax
discount rate of 12.44% and 15% per annum respectively which
reflect the specific risks relating to these CGUs.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are
those regarding the discount rates, the budgeted revenue and
budgeted expenses during the forecasting periods, which are
determined by management based on past performance and
managements’ expectations for the market development.

The impairment testing was carried out by management based
on the value-in-use calculations. During the year ended 30
June 2011, the goodwill arising from the acquisition of the
Island Kingdom Group of HK$7,125,121 was determined by
management to be fully impaired as a result of reassessment
of the future profitability of the Island Kingdom Group.

For the year ended 30 June 2012, for the purposes of
impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the CGU
of PR ASIA which is engaged in the provision of public relations
services.
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15.

16.

84

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGU was determined based
on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
the management. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.5%. The cash flow
projection is discounted at pre-tax discount rate of 14.57% per
annum which reflects the specific risks relating to this CGU.

The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation are those
regarding the discount rates, the budgeted revenue and
budgeted expenses during the forecasting periods, which are
determined by management based on past performance and
managements’ expectations for the market development.

The impairment testing was carried out by management based
on the value-in-use calculations and with reference to an
independent professional valuation. As a result, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$4,000,000 in respect of
the goodwill arising from the acquisition of PR ASIA for the
year ended 30 June 2012.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials JR R}
Work in progress R
Finished goods SRR

15.

16.

[5E1E ))

BEZRENRE)

R EEEMN ARG & EEIEERE A
g WERREEEESEM AFHMEZY
BEEE B ReREET - BARF
HEZEESREB I A25%ERZRHEE - HE
T TR TH R T AT BE IR R B F14.57%88 R
i B85 3R 3R [ BR e IR AR BE A 2 A E LR o

ERABEFECRRBRRASAREBENRRE
MREXRFERZ 2BER  ZERRBERE
ERBUNEXRRLEBEHTSERZHAE
MEEE e

BEAANDEEERERBEFELLERE
VEEGBERET - Bt AEERESE
201296 A30R IEFE BN ARBEL 2
7 B AE LR R (B /E5 154,000,00078 7T

7
Group
REHE
As at As at
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
H2012F 20114
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
B IT BIT
2,427,931 2,129,223
934,863 2,013,039
3,152,501 1,193,018
6,515,295 5,335,280
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. EZRHMEWRIE
Group Company
rEE KATF
As at As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2012 2011 2012 2011
20125 201156 A2012%F 20114
6H30H 6A30H 6H30H 6430H
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BIT
Trade receivables B 2 IR 6,890,681 8,318,655 - -
Receivables arising from BB FhasAm
dealing in listed securities EEZ ERGIA 839,565 13,932 = =
Deposit paid in respect of a EZBE BN
proposed acquisition (Note (i)  #%&& (Bi#E()) 23,000,000 - - -
Other deposits paid HnB iR e 2,873,724 9,365,976 421,600 -
Prepayments TEFRIE 791,169 501,912 - =
Loan receivable (Note (ii)) RN E R (FEEG)) 12,000,000 - | 12,000,000 -
Other receivables H A pE U ERIR 412,833 2,061,208 126,054 207,300
46,807,972 | 20,261,683 | 12,547,654 207,300
Notes: FIEE

(ii)

On 15 May 2012, the Company announced that Huge
Discovery Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) (the “Purchaser”) and Ms. Chen Yejun and Mr.
Huang Tianhua (collectively, the “Vendors”) entered into an
acquisition agreement dated 7 May 2012, pursuant to which,
among other things, the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to
purchase, and the Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell,
the entire equity interest in Sino-Mongolia Fluorspar Mining
Co., Ltd. and related shareholder loan, at a cash consideration
of HK$148,000,000 (subject to adjustments). A refundable
deposit of HK$23,000,000 has been placed with the Vendors
as of 30 June 2012. The aforesaid acquisition constitutes a
major transaction on the part of the Company under the GEM
Listing Rules, and has not been completed as of the date of

approval of these financial statements.

At 30 June 2012, the loan to a third party with a principal
amount of HK$12,000,000 is unsecured, bears interest at 12%
per annum and repayable in October 2012.
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(i)

M2012465H158 © K R & B fiHuge
Discovery Limited (AR R Z E#EZ AN B
AR ([ER]) BREBELTREREL
A (Rl E S ) R2012965A78 5T i
e Bl (KR EE)BERE R KYE
REREE MEARERERAELERS
ERRBEBRA R 2 2 H0RE XA RBERE
B3 3 R (E 51480000007 (7] F
FAE) o HE2012F6A308 © AIREZE
23,000,000/8TCE & 7717 © IREFEEIZER
FEWRA PR EEEKARAR 2 —
BEARS  BRZEMBIREMEZ B
MARTEAK °

R2012F6A308 ' HTFE=AZEHAS
812,000,000/ 7T A& 1R « 12 F F K12%
HERAR2012F10 5838 -
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 17.
The Group grants a credit period ranging from 30 to 60 days
to its customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade

receivables, presented based on the invoice date:

0 - 30 days 0230K

31 - 60 days 31E60K
61 - 90 days 61E90K
Over 90 days FBIAI0KR

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
below for aged analysis) which are past due at the end of
the reporting period but against which the Group has not
recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

Ageing of past due but not impaired presented based on the
due date:

Up to 90 days &% 0K
91 - 180 days 912180k
Over 180 days FBiE 180K

B 7 R H b WK IE ()
AEEBETEEEOBREHN T0F0X
BREB L2 E 5 ERRIEZRE DT
M

Group

rER
As at As at
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
H2012F 20114
6A30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT BT
3,936,169 3,745,732
1,544,481 2,263,530
460,633 868,409
949,398 1,440,984
6,890,681 8,318,655

EXHEEHERBFBABERBEHRE
BHMeBENTREST)  BEENEEE
EWELMERED - AU NEAEERR
AJ 45 [0 T S 4 R AR R AR A o NSRBI L
ZERBRATAERRAEBEERE

REIH A 27 2 2 A BN ERE ARk

Group

REE
As at As at
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
A20125F 20114
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT SIT
924,805 3,218,430
517,420 611,973
542,379 742,520
1,984,604 4,572,923
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18. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 18. BEEERE

Held-for-trading investments include: FHEEERE B

Group Company
rEH PN
As at As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2012 2011 2012 2011

R201245 MR20114 M20125 20114
6H30H 6H30H 6830H 6H30H

HKS$ HKS HK$ HKS
BT PETT A ITT PETT
Equity securities listed in RER LRI
Hong Kong, at market value #BH o EmmE 25,906,100 | 20,095,000 - -
Unlisted investment fund FLTREES - 9,991,292 - 9,991,292
Fair value NS 25,906,100 30,086,292 - 9,991,292
Fair value of the unlisted investment fund was determined FELEMBERES 2 AFEDNISELL AR
with reference to broker's quoted bid price. ZBENEBERE °
19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19. RITEFERRE
As at 30 June 2012, the Group's bank balances carry interest 201256 A30R + REB K RITEFIZN T
at rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% per annum (2011: 0.01% 0.01E 2035F (20114 : BF001EZE07E)
to 0.7% per annum) and the Company’s bank balances carry ZEMEGFTE  MARBKRITEFTENT
interest at 0.01% per annum (2011: 0.01% per annum). 001E (20114 : HF001E) ZEM=KRETE
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 200 EFRHEHMENSFE

Group Company
AEE AT
As at As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

2012 2011 2012 2011

20125 20114 20125 20114
6H30H 64308 6H30H 64308

HKS$ HKS HKS
BT ; BT PETT
Trade payables B S ENFIE 4,385,135 3,334,714 - =
Other payables and accruals H A ERTFRIE R
&M 3,359,115 8,858,889 182,753 691,961
Rental deposits received B EES 1,210,754 1,132,150 - -
8,955,004 13,325,753 182,753 691,961
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on LZEEAZ5 28 5 - FRIA 2 BRER 5 AT IR
the invoice date: I
Group
REE
As at As at
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
R2012F 20114
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
B IT PSTT
0 - 30 days 0E 30K 2,789,016 2,777,856
31 - 60 days 31E260K 489,700 422,808
61 — 90 days 612 90K 638,424 4,038
Over 90 days EBIE0K 467,995 130,012
4,385,135 3,334,714
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is BEETERZFHRKHRIOR - A5E
30 days. The Group has financial risk management policies il 7 B 75 R b B IR R - ARERNIRERHIA
in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit W el B FE T 5RIE ©
timeframe.
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21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. BR

Authorised
As at 1 July 2010, ordinary shares of

EE
7201057818 © H&XEE0.05

Number of
shares

RHEE

L ET
capital

B
HKS
BT

HK$0.05 each BITZ AR 1,000,000,000 50,000,000
Increase in the authorised share R JNEER9,000,000,000%
capital by creation of additional FIE{E0.0578 7T 2 B 1D
9,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 BANEERRA © B20114F
each with effect from 17 January 2011 1R 17BBERK 9,000,000,000 450,000,000
As at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2012, 201166 308 20124
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each 6H30H - FRREE0.05ETT
2 &R 10,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRHR
As at 1 July 2010, ordinary shares of R201067 818 » HIREE0.05
HKS$0.05 each BT BB 259,234,892 12,961,745
Issue of 243,000,000 new shares of R20105F9 A E B E AEAR
HK$0.05 each at a price of HK$0.22 Bt & R% 17 0.2258 7T 2 (B 1%
per placing share by way of 2£17243,000,000/% &A%
placing in September 2010 E{E0.057 TTHET AR 17 243,000,000 12,150,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each FRMEE.05E T2 BB 502,234,892 25,111,745
Issue of 100,400,000 new shares of 12010512 A B B E LA
HK$0.05 each at a price of HK$0.165 BIRECLE I 1901657
per placing share by way of placing 2 (E1&E97100,400,0008%
in December 2010 BRMEE.0SETH IR, 100,400,000 5,020,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each FAREE0.058 T2 T imAk 602,634,892 30,131,745
Issue of 505,700,000 new shares of 2011453 A B AR E A
HK$0.05 each at a price of HK$0.165 BIRAELE R190.1658 7T
per placing share by way of placing Z (B 1&E17505,700,0008%
in March 2011 BGAREE0.05/8 LRI AR () 505,700,000 25,285,000
As at 30 June 2011, ordinary shares of R20115E6H308 + BREE
HKS$0.05 each 0.05/8 7T 2 Tk 1,108,334,892 55,416,745
Issue of 554,167,446 new shares of R2012F4RERBARAEE
HK$0.05 each at a price of HK$0.07 ([RFAEE iRk B A
per offer share on the basis of BREMRIRERNERE—
one offer share for every two existing IR BB IR D 2 BEA TR
shares held on the record date by BERN0.07B T2 (BB ETT
way of open offer (the “Open Offer”) 554,167,446 % F AR EE
in April 2012 0.058 7T 2 ¥k 7 554,167,446 27,708372
As at 30 June 2012, ordinary shares of 2012566 4308 + SR EE
HKS$0.05 each 005872 Ak 1,662,502,338 83,125,117
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22. RHEBATRZKRE

Company
AAHE

As at As at
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
20125 20114
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
BT BIT

Unlisted investments, at cost JELETHIRE R 788

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in RRREEME R R Z BRI E R M
note 33 to the financial statements. 33 e

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries @u&/(@'ﬁ) Ff B B 7R

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries as shown on the Company’s QR IEAR K BTN 2 FEUL(FERE) BT B
statement of financial position are unsecured, interest-free and NRFAREER - 28 RBRERERE -

repayable on demand.

23. RESERVES 23. f#fE
(@)  Group and Company (a AEEREAF
The share options reserve relates to share options BEEFEBARTETES &R -
granted to certain directors, employees, other eligible Hih & BR2HEE REFBRXANER
participants and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. FBRRAE - DARKAD REE 2 A —
Further information about share-based payments is set FE R H I AT 7E26

out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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23. RESERVES (continued) 23. fR#E#E)
(b)  Company (b) ARH
Total equity
Share attributable
Share options  Accumulated  to owners of
premium reserve losses  the Company
AQFHEEBA
R4 1E BRERE R2itEE  EEERAR
HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT
Balance as at 1 July 2010 201057 A1 R 2 F#k 190,974,986 6,392,043 (66,517,114) 130,849,915
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEREE
expense for the year BEY - - (3,859,637) (3,859,637)
Issue of new shares by BAREET
way of placing % 105,360,061 - - 105360061
Transfer of reserve upon lapse  FERRHE K 0ES (15
of share options B - (5,554,748) 5,554,748 =
Balance as at 30 June 2011 201156 A308 2 &8k 296,335,047 837,295 (64,822,003) 232,350,339
Loss and total comprehensive FEFEREE
expense for the year BH% = - (4,880,902) (4,880,902)
Issue of new shares by way ~ BBAREEET
of open offer Ei 11,083,349 = - 11,083,349
Share issue expenses REITHX (1,659,118) = = (1659,118)
Balance as at 30 June R 2012564308
2012 248 305,759,278 837,295  (69,702,905) 236,893,668
24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 24. EEHIREE

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

TIHRRAFERBEFERAZEIERT
HMAAGENEZE :

Group

Accelerated tax

depreciation

TEH

IEEBLRTE

HKS

BIT

As at 1 July 2010, as restated 20107818 » K&7 249,696
Charge to profit or loss ERiEati=]i5 425,525
As at 30 June 2011, as restated 7201146 4308 @ K& 675,221
Charge to profit or loss BEmER 488,592
Eliminate on disposal of a subsidiary — Hi%& — BB A AR 85 (5,067)
As at 30 June 2012 7201256 H30H 1,158,746
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24.

25.

26.

92

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$51,721,000 (2011: HK$48,310,000)
available for offset against future profits that may be carried
forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustees.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income of HK$900,009 (2011: HK$578,755)
represents contributions payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(a) Share Option Scheme
A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company on 20 April 2004 for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group's operations.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
may, at its discretion, invite any employees, directors,
advisors, consultants, licensors, distributors, suppliers,
agents, customers, joint venture partners, strategic
partners and services providers of and/or to any
member of the Group whom the Board considers in its
sole discretion, to have contributed to the Group from
time to time (together “Participants”) to take up options
to subscribe for shares of the Company (“Options”).

24,

25.

26.

EEBEEE#)

RMEBR NEBZRBAHBEBEBLY
51,721,000/ 7C(20114F : 48,310,000% 7T ) A
RAREHEAREH @ ZEMBEARBAREES
B EIR B A58 o AR 2R i A1) 2R Al 78
Al At EBHIBEERRECHIEES
E o

RKERGHE
AEBERMERARERBIRIABHER
EEEtE - R EMEERERAZERZE
TRA  BAKENEESRGE -

RNEBERBEFTSHBIEENL A AE HE
900,009 7T (20114F : 578,755/ 7T ) 1E /& %
ZEtEMEHFR YEESGE 2 AR R E

27
s ©

URBABERZNARRS

(a) B REST 8
RN TF200454 B 20 B 4N BE AL Rt
2I(ERERTE D) - AWRE 2R A
REBEEBHKNEL BERINE ES

ApmEzEe((BFe )ARBER
EEg2RRBERRETREALHE
BEBOAEE R A EBEAK
BRRMMERRE - EF - FHA
B FFAIREA DR HE
BeREA BF AEBH KR
BHERBHER(GHEI28E K
XA R A R B B0 B AR (T BB AR
) -
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a) Share Option Scheme (continued)
Options granted should be accepted within 14 days
from the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the Options,
the eligible person shall pay HKS1 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant. The Options may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during the option period
after the Options has been granted by the Board. An
option period is a period to be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion and notified by the
Board to each eligible person as being the period
during which any Options may be exercised, such
period to expire not later than 10 years after the date
of grant of the Options.

The subscription price will be determined by the
Board at its absolute discretion and shall be no less
than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be
a business day; and (b) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted or to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme is 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the
listing date of the Company on GEM (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit").
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a)

94

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Company may renew the Scheme Mandate
Limit at any time subject to prior shareholders of the
Company’s approval. No Participants shall be granted
an option which, if exercised in full, would result in
such Participants becoming entitled to subscribe for
such number of shares as, when aggregated with the
total number of shares already issued under all the
options previously granted to him or her which have
been exercised, and, issuable under all the outstanding
options previously granted to him or her which are
for the time being subsisting and unexercised, would
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant of the
Options. Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of the grant) in excess of HKS5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

Unless early terminated in accordance with the terms
therein, the Share Option Scheme will remain valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on 18 June 2004.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at the shareholders’ meeting.

26.

URGBARER 2NRRZ (#)

(a)

BRETE(E)

MES ARG KRR TELEIE - AR
A AR (AT R B et B PR 28 -
BEERHERES B IENEF+ZE
A EAR - st ATAI A 2 B E R IR
BRERBHTEMERZ L2 EES
ERENZEROE B ER LRRE
FIBE THEITEEREMEEITR
RITEEMAREITHRGD & T RS R
BETROBERN1%  BIZ2EEE
TERERE RARASES =
ZITRABRFERFKEE 2 EA
BBEATRTRRE BAFLEEN
NAVBIEITE EHME o D - 1H
REM+Z@ABERARETFAQRE
ERANIBIIFNITESHEE 2 (F
BB A 1 2 B AR R 18 AN N B (1]
B [ B2 31T 2. 0.1% 3 BB (RIBR
HEREE B AR RRDERFTE
JB#815,000,0008 7T * BB ELERE
AE LESRKRFELE -

BRIEEE R ERT B IR B E R TR ER
1 - BRIBMET 2R 2004%F6 A 180
FEH10F AR RER AR o

BREYTHTRHAAZERERR
BRERAE ERFEZER -

China Natural Investment Company Limited B X R E B R &



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

AR E SRR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B ZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

26.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

26.

The following table discloses the movements of share

options granted under the Share Option Scheme

during the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2012:

Exercise

Date of grant period

TRAE

Exercise

price per

share (without
the adjustment
for the

Open Offer)

BRITER
(RRARBE
fEHAZ)

HKS

BT

14 August 2009 14 August 2009 to
Notes (i) & (ii) 13 August 2010
200948148 2009F8A14HE
Pt =) Be i 2010685130
Notes:

Annual Report 2012 &3

The exercise price and number of share options
granted on 14 August 2009 were retrospectively
adjusted for the share consolidation which became
effective on 21 January 2010.

The fair value of 18,520,000 (number as adjusted)
share options granted on 14 August 2009 was
determined by the directors to be approximately
HKS$5,555,000 with reference to an independent
professional valuation using a Binomial model. The
inputs into the model included the share price of
HKS$0.168 per share on the date of grant, the exercise
price of HK$0.181 per share, expected volatility of
121.821%, expected option life of one year, no
expected dividend and estimated annualised risk
free interest rate of 0.230%.

0.905

URGBARER 2NRRZ (#)

(a)

Outstanding

1

BT EI(E)
TREEEZE2011F&2012F6H308
IR RT BIR 2 B ki
&) :

Outstanding

Lapsed during
the year ended
30 June 2011

asat

30 June 2011
and 2012
R2011E
20125
6H30H

e RATHE

asat
July 2010

20105
7H1H
8 RATHE

BZ0NE
67308 Lt
EEXN

18,520,000 (18,520,000) =

18,520,000 (18,520,000) =

GEX

200958 A 14 AR TR IR 2 1T B R
ZHEHMN201051 A21 BREBBKZMDA
BHEH B AR -

7200958 A 148 % F #718,520,00017 ( A%
BHEBREZATELCESETAN
5,555,000/ 70 * W2 EB L BEHEEA
—EBEAMEE c EX 2B AHBERSG
R B 82 BRESR0I68HE T « BIRIT
£{B0.18148 7T « AR 1B121.821% - TEHR
TEH—F  BEEHREREHERRKRSE
F%0.230% °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E M ERR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EZ2012F6 A30R IEFE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)

926

Right of First Refusal Agreement with The Chinese
University of Hong Kong

Pursuant to an agreement dated 8 August 2002 entered
into between The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and the Company relating to the grant of a right of
first refusal to the Company by The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in respect of certain technology and
inventions, as amended and supplemented by
agreements dated 31 October 2003 and 16 April 2004
(the “Right of First Refusal Agreement”), the Company
will be offered a right of first refusal for the grant by The
Chinese University of Hong Kong of a royalty-bearing
exclusive license to use and commercially develop
certain technologies and inventions and other non-
invasive diagnostic technologies for detecting cancer
and foetal diseases developed by Professor Lo Yuk
Ming, Dennis in future.

In return, the Company agreed to grant to The Chinese
University of Hong Kong or such person as The Chinese
University of Hong Kong may direct (including trustees
of any funds) options to subscribe for shares or to pay
cash up to a maximum amount of HKS$4,600,000 over
the period of the term of such agreement of four years
commencing from 18 June 2004. Such grant of options
will be granted to The Chinese University of Hong Kong
at intervals of twelve months. Such options are not
intended to be granted under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 20 April 2004.

26.

URGBARER 2NRRZ (#)

(b)

HEBRIIXASBNELBEREDG SR
RIEE B R SCAEEAR R 7] 742002F
8ASHEIBBEBHXARER T
D RMERBEE T i R EA R
F #1755 (48 B B &B20036F10A31H
K2004F4 A 16 B 1B #ER RMEIT)
([BrBEERED=R]  ARFABES
ERBRXAREBRTFTASNEFNEE
MBRETENELEER AT AE
ARAEEFARAZEEERHEARE
FITHf 28 #9534 K 3% AR e EL 4 FA BA
BERIEMKIR R ERNIEEIG EZE
Bl o

EARER  ARRIRERTFTEBFX
AESBBRXRBEENAL(R
FEMESHZTEA)BIRE AT
FR2004F6 818 B #E 5T HY 7% 179 7% HU44F
HRARBROIZNERESTE
4,600,000 TLAYIR & © R EHERE
BRAEBTZ@EARTFEEFR XK
Bo. ZEBBRETHBERRFR
200444 A 208 B4 K FE AR #E AT &I %
t|j o
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Right of First Refusal Agreement with The Chinese
University of Hong Kong (continued)
The following table discloses the details of share options
granted pursuant to the Right of First Refusal Agreement
during the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2012:

Date of grant Exercise period

27 June 2008 (Note) 27 December 2008
to 26 June 2013

26.

URGBARER 2NRRZ (#)

(b) EHEEBPUABNELBSERS
(&)
TRFBEEZE20115F%201296 A30H
IFFERBELEEERZEL 2B

ddddd

Outstanding
as at 1 July 2010,
30 June 2011 and

Exercise price per share 30 June 2012

(Adjusted for the (Adjusted for the

Open Offer) Open Offer)
720107818

201156 H30H K

20126 H30H

BRITHEE i RITHE

(RABMBREFEARE) (FRAMBREFLHAR)

HKS
BT

4.966 261,778

2008F6 A278 (MizE) 200812 H27HZE 201346 A26H

Note: The exercise price and outstanding number of
options as at 1 July 2010 were retrospectively
adjusted for the share consolidation which became
effective on 6 August 2009, the share consolidation
which became effective on 21 January 2010 and
adjusted for the Open Offer which became effective
on 18 April 2012.

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company (comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses).

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debts.
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27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 27. EXEREEE)
The gearing ratios at 30 June 2012 and 2011 were as 20129 K2011F6A30H EE B E L R
follows: I
Group
rEH
As at As at
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
R20126F F20114F
6A30H 6H30H
HKS$ HKS
B IT BT
(restated)
(#&E7)
Debts (Note i) &% (PE) 8,955,004 13,325,753
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEE (32,846,867) (68,900,061)
Net debts FRGE (23,891,863) (55,574,308)
Equity (Note ii) Rz (P &EiD) 313,137,770 291,964,714
Gearing ratio EEAMGBLE N/A 3E N/A @
Note: P%E
(i) Debt comprised trade and other payables 0] BERBEE 5 R E RN FIE
(ii) Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners (ii) BEBEMAARRAEE ARLRERK#
of the Company 1
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. SL@THE
28.1 Categories of financial instruments 281 S©RMIEKEHR
Group
REH
As at As at
30 June 2012 30 June 2011
R20125F FR20114F
6H30H 6H30H
HK$ HKS
A ITT BIT
Financial assets TRIEE
Loans and receivables Bk &R
(including cash and IR
cash equivalents) (BEREeREEE) 78,863,670 88,659,832
Fair value through profit BERERZEATE
or loss (Held-for-trading ABR
investments) (FEEERE) 25,906,100 30,086,292
Financial liabilities SEAE
Amortised cost HEERAR 8,955,004 13,325,753

China Natural Investment Company Limited B X R E B R &
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28.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28.2

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risks (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risks), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The management has been monitoring

these risk exposures to ensure appropriate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner so

as to mitigate or reduce such risks.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency risk management

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency riskas most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. The Group currently does not
have a formal foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the time deposit. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to the loan receivables and
bank balances. The Group currently does not
have a formal interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging the
interest rate risk should the need arise. The
fair value interest rate risk on bank deposits
is insignificant as the fixed deposits are short-
term.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
mainly through its investment in listed equity
securities and unlisted fund. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles.

28.

E®MIA#E

28.2

BREREEREREE

RER B 2 KRG RAR F B R
miERER(BEINE R - F == B
REMERRR) FERR MRS
ek ERBERAEEEZSAE
% AFEREER R AR REVEE 2
it AR EZERR -

(a) IIEEBREE

AN B AR AR SN RS
TR ABHREERS
BERAEHABITE - &
S B R A E N8R
FoAM EREERRET
HNEE S ERES e TR B E
BEARINEFSEE R -

(b)  FIEEREE

AEE R E R EREEATFE
MEER - NEBERE
RERITHEF AR RE
MEE R o RS HIRE I I
AFIREIRBER - AT - B
EeEeErXmR  YREHR
26 EEHNEAMRIELS
e ARERERRES - &
RITIF A A FHEF R E R A
RERK o

(c) ERftEEREE
AREEEZHEBE FHRAF
HRIEEMESREMASR
AERRER - BEETRR
B REHREE 2IREMEEERE
BESEAIE o
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28.

100

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28.2

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Other price risks (continued)

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period. If
equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2011:
10% higher/lower) with all other variables held
constant, the consolidated loss after tax for the
year would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$2,591,000 (2011: decrease/increase by
HK$3,009,000) mainly due to the changes in
fair value of held-for-trading investments.

Credit risk management

As at 30 June 2012, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt and debt investment at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

28.

EMI A
MBRREERBREE (D)

28.2

(c)

(d)

B ERHmER(E)
BRANEIE G BSE T

LA TR RUR% FE 43 AT T AR BR R 3R
& HA R A IR A (B 4K R B A I
M E o fil 75 B AN (B 4% 38 A0
SR A 10% (20114 ¢ 50 ,
WA 10%) + T E A B = 4
T REELEAREER
1598 D18 N 492,591,00058 7T
(20114 : R4,/ 3 H03,009,000
BIT) EEHRBIEEER
BNFERBFE -

EEREEE

R2012F6H308 * R 5 %
FREBTEEMEAEEZE
SXUBEENASERSE
ERk - EEBRERE B
MEMINSHEERSHE
ERREE -

HREEERR  AEEERE
EBEZk/AEEEERR
VAREORBR HR R 2 45 e UK (2] 280
BIR © Iboh - ARBERHRES
Rpat AR E 5 B IR R E
BB R AT U E BRE - LARE(R
AR RE K B B B AR FE R B SR
BMERE - Bt S AAF]
EER/AKENEERRE
RIERD

RBEENEERRAR
RHHF REBRBREEFRE
B TR EEFRNRT -
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
28.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
(d) Credit risk management (continued)

(e)

Annual Report 2012 &3

Other than concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds which are deposited with several
banks with high credit ratings, the Group does
not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk.

Liquidity risk management

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and long term.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to

pay.

As at 30 June 2012 72012566 A30H
Non-derivative TESHERS

financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

As at 30 June 2011 R201146H30H8
Non-derivative FTESHERS
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

B 5 R EA R

B 5 REAMREAEK

28.

18

1A

MERBEEERRBE(E)

EEmEERE (&)
BREREFREREZRAR
EEFRZRTZRDER
o AEERAEMEERR
RESTHER

SRMITEE)
28.2

(d)

(e)

On demand

or within undiscounted

one year
RERD
R—FR
HKS
BT

8,955,004

REBELEREE
AEBEZBRRERERRE
RERZRBESHE - A
REL M R AR S B S R HA
REBECFRZRDRHE

mBEE R
NRFFADI A S BT IE0T
Ee A ERRETERDN
BRZIHIER - ZRBIEAE
BANFHRE RSN SREA
BERRUBRASRERE -

Group

rEE
Total Total

carrying

cash flows amount

AERRE
REAE
HKS

BT

IRE{EAEE
HKS
BTT

8,955,004 8,955,004

13,325,753

13,325,753 13,325,753
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28.
28.3 Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid and ask
prices respectively.

The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models (e.g.
discounted cash flow analysis using observable
and/or unobservable inputs).

The fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, a discounted cash flow
analysis is performed using the applicable yield
curve for the duration of the instruments for
non-optional derivatives, and option pricing
models for optional derivatives.

Management considers that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
Financial instruments that are measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value, are grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

ERMITAEE)

283 SMIAQAFE
TREENESRBEZATEDET
PFIBEE

BEAREGRR RGN RN ER
mBMSEEENEREERS
BEABE HOR2EmMBRT
LERENACERBEEAT
{I=I0

HtemEERSBAET
BREMTETR)ZRAFETIR
BERRAEBRAEE (N
ERAEBELR,REEBRA
WABBNMRASRED
1) o

TETAZ RAFHETIARE
B o MARSHAERS - AIZE
HETAETANTRAFHZ
BRR S AETIRIRE SR
DM - T EAREDT A T AR AR
REBERNETHRRRERD
A7 ©

EEERA/REEPBERRPARLZ
TREEMERABENEAEEELR
FERE -

RGEH BRI EERZ A FHEE

RNFHERE » SR T AR FEF
B UYRAVEVEERENR/FE—

E=4:

E—BATEH AT M
AR A AN E RS
HE(KBR) G

FE_RRNFETEDRE R
SAAZRES  BEEXAR
A EZ(AMER) Sk & (BI 2R
BEBITE)BERBABES
Ho R
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
28.3 Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

28.

SRMITEE)
283 SWMIBEAFEE)
RGEH BN EEERZ A FETE
(#&)
. FE=MATFETE T A IE
R IE 7] BR R T 45 BUR (A B
RPABB) CEERBEZ
HETEEE -

As at 30 June 2012 7201266 HA30H

Financial assets SREE
Held-for-trading FEEE
investments & 25,906,100

= - 25,906,100

As at 30 June 2011 201146 H30H
Financial assets EREE
Held-for-trading HIEEE
investments K& 20,095,000 9,991,292 = 30,086,292
29. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 29. ¥EKEHt
Year ended 30 June 2011 HZE2011F6HA30H L FE

On 3 November 2010, the Group acquired 100% of the issued
share capital of Island Kingdom Group for a cash consideration
of HK$21,500,000. The Island Kingdom Group was engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products.

On 20 January 2011, the Group acquired 100% of the
issued share capital of PR ASIA for a cash consideration of
HK$33,600,000. PR ASIA was engaged in provision of public
relations services.

Annual Report 2012 &3

R2010F11 A3+ &N & g B&lsland
Kingdom&E B 2 2 EEHITRA - RERER
21,500,00058 7T © Island Kingdom e Bt 25 &3
MIHE B o

201118208 @« AEBWERIMNABzE

B EBEITIRA - 3] KRB A33,600,000% 7T ©
M ARAR ERE DR -
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29.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)
Year ended 30 June 2011 (continued)

29. ¥BE6t®)

HZE201156H30H L EE (&)

Island
Kingdom
PR ASIA Group
Island
Kingdom
AR £
HKS HKS
BT BT
Identifiable assets, liabilities and ~ BB Z AIFAIEE - BEKR
contingent liabilities acquired: ARG
Property, plant and equipment  #1% B &R E 223,889 2,595,985 2,819,874
Inventories T8 - 5,464,649 5,464,649
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b W IE 2,715,435 9,538,952 12,254,387
Bank balances and cash RITEF MRS 5,864,420 3,045,289 8,909,709
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M FER IR (542,560) (6,269,996) (6,812,556)
Tax payables JFER B8 (923,022) - (923,022)
7,338,162 14,374,879 21,713,041
Goodwill arising on acquisition  BZE20119F6 308 LEF/E
during the year R E A
ended 30 June 2011 ZEE 26,261,838 7,125,121 33,386,959
Cash consideration paid ENBEE2RE 33,600,000 21,500,000 55,100,000
Net cash outflow arising WHEEIEEEX 2 RE
on acquisition: Tt FER
Cash consideration paid ENEBEEKE (33,600,000)  (21,500,000)  (55,100,000)
Cash and cash ERENRE R
equivalents acquired REFE 5,864,420 3,045,289 8,909,709
(27,735,580) (18454,711) (46,190,291)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,334,998 (as to
HK$610,498 in respect of the Island Kingdom Group and as
to HK$724,500 in respect of PR Asia) have been excluded from
the consideration transferred and have been recognised as
an expense in the year ended 30 June 2011, within the “other
operating expenses” line item in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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W BB B R AN 41,334,998/ 7T (Island Kingdom
EEABK A A6104987 7T M2 M A BB
AR AR 55724,500/8 7T ) B B EERET FIK -
HERGEEERSEX 2 EtEEER 3
B AR AEE2011F6A30H FFERX °
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30.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Year ended 30 June 2012

On 24 April 2012, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Fairy Global Investment Limited and its subsidiary
(collectively, the “FGIL Group’) at a cash consideration of
HKS$22,500,000. This disposal constituted a discloseble
transaction on the part of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules.

On 18 January 2012, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Hong Kong Health Management Limited ("HKHM")
for a cash consideration of HKS2.

On 30 December 2011, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in V-Express Pharmaceutical Limited (“VEPL") for a cash
consideration of HK$600,000.

30.

The FGIL Group

EtRE

&5

HEME A T

BIE2012F6A30H L FE

R2012F4824B - A& B U R &€ K &
22,500,000/ 7T H EHE N B IR E B R AR K&
HfB A HE BHERESEE ) 223K
Rz o BIRAIZER LKA - RIEEES
EEKARBIZATHEERS -

R2012F1 8188 + AEBUR SR E2E T
HEENEBREEEAR AR EBERE
B )22 AR -

R2011EF12830H  RE B AR € K E

600,000 T EHERNEREEEFR A A
([SepriEnes |) 2 220 AHERS ©

Total

et

Total cash consideration received BEWER &R IBLREE 22,500,000 2 600,000 23,100,002
Analysis of asset and liabilities BEREEGIE 2 Et
of the FGIL Group, HKHM BRESE FHRE
and VEPL over which BIE R ShER i w R
control was lost: ZEBERBEMN :
Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - R&E k& 512,699 = = 512,699
Inventories & - - 65,482 65,482
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H fth EUCRIE 416,317 - 569,973 986,290
Bank balances and cash IRITHETF RIS 20,958,967 = 94,693 21,053,660
Trade and other payables B 5 K E MR FRIE (61,972) - (178,891) (240,863)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEA R - (5,067) - (5,067)
Net assets/(liabilities) e 2 FEE/
disposal of (Bf&) 21,826,011 (5,067) 551,257 22,372,201
Gain on disposal s 673,989 5,069 48,743 727,801
Net cash inflow arising on HEEEZHRE
disposal: MAJFER
Cash consideration received B ER € K E 22,500,000 2 600,000 23,100,002
Less: bank balances disposed of & : FTHH &2
RITEEAT (20,958,967) = (94,693)  (21,053,660)
1,541,033 2 505,307 2,046,342
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31.

106

OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee
Atthe end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments

for future minimum leases payment under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years inclusive

Operating lease payments represented rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises. Leases were negotiated and rentals
were fixed for a term ranging from two to three years.

The Group as lessor

Property rentalincome earned during the yearwas HK$5,993,129
(2011: HK$3,568,223). All of the Group's investment properties
are held for rental purposes. They are expected to generate
rental yields of approximately 4% on an ongoing basis.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease

payments:

Within one year —FRA
In the second to fifth years inclusive

E_EFLF(BREEMF)

E_EFLF(BREEMF)

KEED

REBEREBEA

PR R - AR AR T A TR
AR THIEIM B X2 kKB ERSHE
T :

As at As at

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
20125 720114
6A30H 6H30H

HK$ HKS

BT BIT
3,950,787 7,622,000
625,205 3,402,000
4,575,992 11,024,000

4 AR g T TSR £ @ R E AN R Y
e HORMBEELHEEME=FT%F
2 FFHRRET o

AEEESHHEA

NPT BELZ M £ WA 55,993,129/ 7T
(20114F : 35682237 70) - AEE 2B K
EMEABERERR - BHREMERE
BEENI%BEEHRE -

RBEHR  AEBEEBFATH - B
ERENRNT

As at As at

30 June 2012 30 June 2011
A20125 720114
6A30H 6H30H

HK$ HKS

BT BIT
3,839,026 2,729,000
1,296,068 914,000
5,135,094 3,643,000
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BEALXXRS
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FRN - EERHMFEEBASZHFMET

management during the year are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2012 2011
B ZE20126F EHZE20114F
6H30H 6H30H
LEE IEFE
HK$ HKS
A IT PETT
Compensation of key FTEEEAB ZH M
management personnel
Short-term benefits 72 HRRE A 1,674,569 1,235,857
Post-employment benefits RIREF 37,883 23,429

1,712,452 1,259,286
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33. SUBSIDIARIES 33. KMIEAH
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 201256 A308 - KRR EFEMBE A RIFIE
June 2012 are as follows: R
Proportion
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully ownership interest
Name of subsidiary operations and legal form paid up share capital held by the Company  Principal activities
e/ AT
it NS EXMRRERER BRARARRE KERREAL  EEER
Chemosino International Limited British Virgin Islands, Ordinary share USS1 100%  Investment holding
limited liabilty company B D) RERR
ZBABRES ARALLT (B%)
Fairy Empire Investment Limited British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares US$100 100%  Investment holding
BHFREBRAT limited liabiity company LER100%T Direct) &L
RERERES ARAMLT (B%)
China Universal Limited Hong Kong, limited fiability company Ordinary share HKS1 100%  Property investment
FHARAT B4 BRELAT LERIAT (ndiec) — EKE
(F%)
Core Medical Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary shares HK$12,000,000 100% Provision of diagnostic testing
BEENRARAT &k AREAAF L33 1%12,000 000570 (Indirect) senvices and products and related
(%) fesearch and development,
and property investment
REDEHT RS R ER -
R &R -
Healthy International Limited Hong Kong, limited fiability company Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100%  Trading of health products and
REELERAT &% AREAAR LRR100008T (Indirect) investment holding
(F) REEH RREHR
Hong Kong Genius Obstetrics Hong Kong, limited fiability company Ordinary share HKS1 100% Provision of consultancy services
Service Consultancy &% AREMAAR LERiIAT (ndiect) RS
Company Limited (%)
BARLRERRERAR
Hong Kong Hepatitis Diagnostic Hong Kong, limited fiability company Ordinary shares HK$100 100%  Provision of diagnostic testing services
Centre Limited % BRALAH LERI00ET (Indirect) relating to certain liver diseases
(e (Bl  REETRRZDEHERE
Next Dimension Advertising Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary shares HK$100 100%  Provision of advertising and
HBEHRSARAA &k AREAAA LERI00ET (Indirect) public relations services
() RUESROBRE
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33.

Name of subsidiary

i) PG
PR ASIA Consultants Limited

EHABERAT

Golden Brand Investments Limited

BERERRAT

Superb Yield Limited

Talent Vision Limited

Vida Laboratories Limited

FREFARAA

Huge Discovery Limited

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/
operations and legal form
i/
EXNEARERER

Hong Kong, limited fiability company
&% ARAMAR

Hong Kong, limited fiability company
&% ARAMAR

Hong Kong, limited fiability company
&% ARAMAR

Hong Kong, limited fiability company
&% ARAMAR

Hong Kong, limited fiability company
&% ARAMAR

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

ZRUBRES ARRMLA

33.

Issued and fully
paid up share capital

BRTRAZRA
Ordinary shares HK$100

LRRI00BT

Ordinary shares HK$10
LERI0ET

Ordinary share HK1
ERRIAT

Ordinary share HKS1
ERRIAT

Ordinary shares HK$620,000
LRR620000T

Ordinary share USS1
ERRiET

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, results in particular of

excessive length.

34.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i) Acquisition of an investment property

34.

In August 2012, the Group acquired an investment
property situated in Hong Kong from an independent
third party at a cash consideration of HK$6,600,000.

(ii) Disposal of a subsidiary
In July 2012, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interest in Core Medical Technology Limited to an
independent third party at a cash consideration of

HK$360,000.
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Proportion

ownership interest

held by the Company

TRERAAM

Principal activities
527
TEEK

100%  Provision of public relations services

(ndrec)  RERBRE
9
100%  Investment holding
(ndiect) AR
9
100%  Property investment
(ndiec) — HERE
9
100%  Property investment
(ndiec) — HERE
9

100%  Manufacturing, trading and packaging
(Indirect) in pharmaceutical products
(B%) EakE 25REE

100%  Investment holding
(ndirect) AR
9

EREFEER KRS REELE
REEEEAYE L AEEWEAT - £F
A S E AR AR 2 AR
ARBRITE -

BREMREE

(i)

(ii)

WE—BREME

R2012F87 » "EERBILFE=F
WE—TBM R BB 2 IREWE - 1]
& B A6,600,00078 7T °

HE—REMEATF

R2012F78 » AEBRBILE=
FHEEREEREEBEREBRAR
22 EpIE - RS REA360,00078
5T o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

AR B M ERR MR

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EZE2012F6 A30R IEFE

34.

110

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Proposed issuance of convertible notes and
placing shares

On 30July 2012, the Company announced that ordinary
resolutions were duly passed by the Company’s
shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held
on 30 July 2012, approving inter alia (i) the proposed
issuance of convertible notes for a maximum principal
amount of HK$100,000,000 pursuant to a placing
agreement dated 9 May 2012; and (ii) the proposed
issuance of placing shares for a maximum amount of
HK$50,000,000 pursuant to a placing agreement dated
9 May 2012. The issuance of the aforesaid convertible
notes and placing shares has not been completed as of
the date of approval of these financial statements.

Proposed very substantial disposal and very
substantial acquisition (“Transactions”)

On 9 September 2012, the Company announced that
a sale and purchase agreement (the “SP Agreement”)
dated 7 September 2012 was entered into between
Chemosino International Limited (“CN BVI") (a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), as vendor,
and Town Health Asset Management Limited (“TH
Property Holding"), as purchaser. Pursuant to the SP
Agreement, CN BVI has conditionally agreed to sell
and TH Property Holding has conditionally agreed
to acquire the entire issued share capital of Million
Worldwide Investment Limited, a company wholly
owned by CN BVI, at a consideration of HK$195,000,000
which will be satisfied by the allotment and issue of
new shares in the capital of TH Property Holding (the
"Consideration Shares”) by TH Property Holding to CN
BVI upon the completion of the aforesaid disposal.
Immediately after the said completion, CN BVI will in
turn own 25% of the issued share capital of TH Property
Holding as enlarged by the issue of the Consideration
Shares. The Transactions constitute a very substantial
disposal and a very substantial acquisition on the part
of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules, and have
not been completed as of the date of approval of these
financial statements.

34.

HREWPERBRE)

(iii)

(iv)

BERBRTURREBERREERHD

2012878308 * KRBEM © &
BRZERDEARRQRIBRER2012F
7308817 2 RERFRIAE FIELX
B DE (AR EE) O)RE
HEIA2012565 Ao 2R EM=E
BRETIRRER  AeBEEA
100,000,000/ 7T i R (iiRE B E %
20125 A9H 2 e E s Ern 31T
B ER%1D + £REEx % 450,000,000/
T o BIEMEZZTRBHRE AR
BT bl ] R AR 2R % B 6 AR D 1]
RITHK °

ERFEEAHESTERIEETEAK
BEE(XRZ])

201269 A9H * RAAIEM + A
NE|EEZE W B R FIChemosino
International Limited ( [CN BVI] )
(tEBE7) HTown Health Asset
Management Limited ( [TH#3
ER] ) (ERET) M20124F
OR7RFIVEEH= ( [EEH
& ) REEEWHZE - INBVIAK
HRE R EMTHY EERE KR
Z U BEMillion Worldwide Investment
Limited (FACNBVIZE#H) 232
BATARA - (B 7%%195,000,0008 7T
15 R THYD SR B 10 b il 1 5 S 1
MCN BVIFD 3 K I TTHY) IR ARAR
Kep 2ty ( [RERH] ) X
it o ZBE FAiSERIE - MCN BVIH
BEAETHY X ZEREETRERD
BAE B EITIRA Z225% ° BRI
IR ETARR] - RSEKARF]
ZIEBEANNESTHERIEFTERK
BEIE  HEHEZSYBBRERLZ
H  XSHAKRTHK °
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Five-year Financial Summary

EFMBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

AEERBERAEVBEENFEREEHLBEHRE
;HAAT ¢

Year ended 30 June

BZE6HA30HLLEE

2011
HKS

BT

(restated)

(&&E7)

2010
HK$
BT
(restated)
(& =51)

RESULTS
Revenue
(Loss)/Profit for the year

attributable to owners

of the Company

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)
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£

LN

AREIHEBA
FIEAEE
(&),

57,245,184 | 41,903,291 4,704,192 4,889,627 1,597,086
(16,181,273)| (1,907,259 (1,342,052) 312418956 (360,924,850)
323,251,520 | 307525449 147,503,961 91,738,439 230,191,063
10,113,750 15,560,735 1,447,049 1,883,786 493,149,437
313,137,770 | 291,964,714 146,056,912 89,854,653  (262,958,374)
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Particulars of Major Investment Properties
TEREMEZHE

As at 30 June 2012
7201246 A30H

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

Location

B

Shop nos. 53, 54, 56 and 57 on Ground Floor of Commercial Centre,
Fullview Garden, No. 18 Siu Sai Wan Road, Hong Kong
B/ E 185 B REHH T 535%  545% « 5658 K575k 4

Shop no. G12 on Ground Floor, Commercial Podium,
Sincere House, No 83 Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

FENEREZEREMAERSH NG1257 5

Shop nos. G27 and G28 on Ground Floor, Commercial Podium,
Sincere House, No.83 Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB NEER S ZHSR I AE R S N 627 KG285k &

Shop no. G21 on Ground Floor, Grandway Garden, No. 16 Mei Tin Road
and Nos. 15 and 35 Tsuen Nam Road, Shatin, New Territories

D EE MR 1657 M AT R ER 15 K 3558 & 52 L B N G215R 4

Flat K on 9th Floor, Champion Building, Nos. 301-309 Nathan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB N EERIE301-3095 52 B G E A EIEKE

Flat A on 12th Floor, Champion Building, Nos. 301-309 Nathan Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB N ERBGE301-309 R B I EAE 1 2ZAE

Public carpark nos. P101 — P150 together with Shroff’s Office, on 1st
Floor Citimark, No. 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, New Territories
A BHIRIEE 285 2 & B i5P101-P15058 A HE B E R
—B IR
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FERE 2=

Type

E5!

Non-residential use

FEEERE

Non-residential use

FEEAR

Non-residential use

FEERB

Non-residential use

FEEERE

Non-residential use

FEEAR

Non-residential use

FEERB

Non-residential use

FEEERE

Lease term

HEHR

Medium-term lease

RHIEE

Long-term lease

REIEE

Long-term lease

RHHEE

Medium-term lease

RHIEE

Long-term lease

REIEE

Long-term lease

RHHEE

Medium-term lease

RHIEE
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